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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AR ERE F

SHARE INFORMATION

Place of listing : Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code 190

Board Lot : 2000 shares

Financial Year End : 31 December

At 31 December 2021
Number of shares in issue: 458,600,000 ordinary shares

Market capitalisation : HK$376.05 million
Closing price : HK$0.82 per share

SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHAREHOLDERS’ CALENDAR

For attending and voting at the Annual General
Meeting

Latest time to lodge transfer
documents for registration
with Share Registrar

Closure of Register of Members

At 4:30 pm
on 13 June 2022

14 to 17 June 2022
(both dates inclusive)

17 June 2022

17 June 2022

21 June 2022

Record date
Annual General Meeting
Ex-dividend date for final dividend

For entitling 2021 final dividend

Latest time to lodge transfer At 4:30 pm
documents for registration on 22 June 2022
with Share Registrar

Closure of Register of Members 23 June 2022

Record date 23 June 2022

Payment Date of Final Dividend 7 July 2022

2022 Interim Results Announcement ~ August 2022 (tentative)
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
IRERE M

INVESTOR RELATIONS KEERME

E-mail: info@puxing-energy.com B # . info@puxing-energy.com
COMPANY WEBSITE IR D

WWW. pUXing-energy.com WWW.pUxXing-energy.com
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
1 75 1 2

Revenue (RMB'000) Profit for the year (RMB'000)
e (AR#%FT) & Net Profit Margin
B Elocticity & FERRF (AE¥TRT) REFIE
ectricity & 1

Heat A1)
22.72%  91.31% 17.25%

W Service Bk 580,240 601,573 20.57%

15.00%
514,679 123,674
450,949 463,119
106,216 108,792
92,739
77,217 '
¢

/
/
2017 2018*  2019* 2020 2021 2017 2018* 2019 2020 2021
Net Asset Value per share (RMB) Dividend (HK$)
& Gearing Ratio BRE (#T)
BREERE (AE®BT) RARGEFHLF ,
B Final K&

61.72%

55.88% 56.74%
51.03%  44.09% 0-10

215

1.89 el
1.57

I I 1.42 0.056"

0.035

| | | | | | 0.03 | |
; e ! ! y
// Y,

2017 2018*  2019* 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

# Proposed final dividend
BHFHRE

* Since the acquisition of 100% of the equity interests in Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. completed in September
2020 was dealt with as a business combination under common control, the comparative figures had been restated in accordance with the
requirements of the relevant accounting policies of the Group for business combination under common control. For details, please refer to note

2(f) to the consolidated financial statements.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

For the year ended
31 December

B 755 41 22

#E+_A=+—-HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—-&§ “EIEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
AREFr ARETT =)
Revenue Wi 601,573 580,240 +3.68%
Profit from operations FS—bragil 202,538 191,533 +5.75%
Profit attributable to equity ENE DR R
shareholders of the Company el 103,825 124,190 -16.40%
Basic earnings per share SRELRH RMB0.226 RMB0.271 -16.61%
AR#0.22677 PNEEWIAFS
Dividend per share SRES
— Interim — A Nil Nil 0%
® &
- Proposed final — kAR H HK$0.056 HK$0.10 -44.00%
0.0567# 7T 0.108 7t
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020
b bl T EF
RMB’000 RMB’000 Change
AREFr ARETT =)
Total assets mEE 1,858,347 1,937,023 -4.06%
Total equity attributable to equity EREERKRE
shareholders of the Company FE(h 4Bt 718,866 651,200 +10.39%
Net asset value per share' SREEFE RMB1.57 RMB1.42 +10.56%
AR¥1.57Tn PNGEAR YT
Net debt? B BEE 942,860 1,049,880 -10.19%
Total capital® LA 1,661,726 1,701,080 -2.31%
Gearing ratio* BRERLER 56.74% 61.72% -4.98%
Notes:
1 Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company i KA m IR AAE w
Number of ordinary shares in issue BETEEREE
2, Total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings, consideration 2. B (BETEEE BARE REEREEE

payable, shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities) — Cash and cash

equivalents

3. Total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company +

Net debt

4. Net debt
Total Capital

o

8R) —REAREEEY

3. TN B IR R (AR AR ER

4 BS54
A5
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Puxing Energy Limited (“Puxing Energy”
or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries,
collectively the “Group”), | am pleased to present to you
the annual report of the Company for the financial year
ended 31 December 2021.

In 2021, COVID-19 swept the world continuously.
With the efforts of the government of the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) to keep COVID-19
under strictly control and prevention, the social and
economic activities have resumed rapidly and the
overall power consumption demand in the society
has returned to a stable level. However, in the second
half of 2021, Zhejiang Province Development and
Reform Commission (the “ZDRC”) announced a cut in
the capacity tariff for the first time with a decline rate
of 16% since its trial implementation of the “Notice
Regarding the Trial Implementation of Dual Tariff
for Natural Gas Power Generating Units in Zhejiang
Province” (the “Dual Tariff Policy”) on 1 January 2015,
which is expected to reduce the capacity tariff revenue
of the Company by approximately RMB57 million for
2022. Although the ZDRC intended to allocate the
reducing portion of the capacity tariff in the form of
bidding power generation configuration so as to tie in
with its purpose of full implementation of the electricity
spot market trading and achieving growth in natural
gas power generation, according to the current gas
and electricity prices and the Group’s prediction on the
gas and electricity price allocation in the future, it is
expected that the relevant prices will not be conducive
to the development and sustainability of the Group’s
natural gas power generation business. The adjustment
of capacity tariff made by ZDRC has greatly squeezed
the profit margin of Puxing Energy, and also brought
severe tests and challenges to the future profitability
of Puxing Energy. The Group will strive to maximise
its benefits by actively participating in the bidding of
electricity spot trading and optimising its way of natural
gas power generation, and try to minimise the impact
arose from the policy changes. As the relevant capacity
tariff adjustment only took effect on 1 January 2022, it
did not have any impact on the Group’s revenue and
profit for 2021.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2021, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
amounted to RMB103.83 million and earnings per
share was RMBO0.226, representing a decrease
of 16.61% as compared with last year. As at 31
December 2021, total equity attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was RMB718.87
million and net asset value per share was RMB1.57,
representing an increase of 10.56% as compared with
last year. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.056 per share, representing a decrease of 44%
from the dividend of HK$0.10 per share for last year.

POWER GENERATION BUSINESS

In 2021, in response to the overall electricity
procurement demand adjustment made by Zhejiang
Province according to the safety requirements of
regional power grid and the Group’s active participation
in the trial run of the trading in electricity spot market
carried out in Zhejiang Province during the year, for
the year ended 31 December 2021, the production
volume by natural gas of the Group decreased slightly
by 0.48% to 383,230.2 megawatt hour (MWh) as
compared to 385,094.6MWh last year, and the volume
tariff revenue increased by 0.78% to RMB188.80 million
from RMB187.34 million last year.

In 2022, the cut in capacity tariff brings comparative
great changes to the operation and power generation
mode of the Group’s power plants with peak shaving
as their main roles. The Group will follow up the
dynamics and development of relevant policies
continuously, and will make strategic adjustments to
the business model of natural gas power generation
business in due course.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EFERHRE

HEATING BUSINESS

In 2021, the Group completed the construction of
approximately 5 kilometer (km) heat grid in Tangpu
Industrial Park, and cooperated with enterprises in
the park to use their biomass boilers as peak shaving
boilers to carry out trial run for heating operation in
Tangpu Industrial Park, and has been introducing
heat users gradually. The Group expects to obtain
approvals from relevant government authorities within
2022 to commence the construction of the main lines
from Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co.,
Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”) to Tangpu Industrial Park and
Kangshan Industrial Park, and to complete the relevant
construction in 2023 as planned. Benefiting from the
continuous strengthening of heat grid construction
and expansion of heating market of the Group, for
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s heat
sales volume increased by 44.23% to 173,791 tons as
compared to 120,494 tons last year; the revenue from
sales of heat increased by 53.07% to RMB53.65 million
from RMB35.05 million last year; the contribution
margin ratio rose by 10.98 percentage points to
26.92% from 15.94% last year. In the future, the Group
will continue expanding the development of heat users
and strive to promote the continuous and high-quality
development of the Group’s heating business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

OUTLOOK

2022 will be a challenging year for Puxing Energy. The
full implementation of trading in electricity spot market
in Zhejiang Province and the cut in capacity tariff will
bring a severe test to the profitability of Puxing Energy.
The Group will closely follow the development of the
electricity sales market, study the profit model of
electricity sales, strengthen the development of heating
business, and cooperate with the continuous promotion
of refined management and strict cost control, so as to
minimise the impact of policy changes.

Looking ahead, the PRC government’s firm commitment
to the “double carbon” goal of peaking carbon emission
and achieving carbon neutrality, firm acceleration in the
development of new energy, optimisation of its energy
structure, and embarkation on a green, low-carbon and
circular development path will bring huge opportunities
to the Group for transforming into an integrated
energy supplier. The Group will continue taking the
development of diversified energy business as its goal,
strive for different types of energy projects, and make
unremitting efforts to enhance the Group’s long-term
growth potential and shareholder value.

Finally, | hereby extend my sincere gratitude to the
shareholders, business partners, directors, management
team as well as the loyal and diligent staff members of
the Group for their continuous support.

XU Anliang
Chairman

Zhejiang Province, PRC, 30 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

The Group is mainly engaged in the development,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants. The Group has five wholly-owned gas-fired
power plants in Zhejiang Province, with an aggregate
installed capacity of 687.73 megawatt (MW) (2020:
687.73MW) (including 731 kilowatt (kW) (2020: 731kW)
photovoltaic power generating units) with a maximum
heating capacity per hour of 360 tons (2020: 360 tons).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, COVID-19 swept the world continuously. With
the efforts of the central government of the PRC to
keep COVID-19 under strict control and prevention, the
social and economic activities have resumed rapidly
and the overall power consumption demand in the
society has returned to a stable level. During the year,
the Group’s production and operation were generally
stable. The production volume of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 decreased by 0.48%
to 383,230.2 MWh as compared to 385,094.6 MWh
in 2020. Meanwhile, with the increase in heat sales
volume during the year, the total consumption of natural
gas increased by 6.58% to 102,768,108 m?® from
96,420,405 m?® in 2020.

During the year, the Group completed the construction
of approximately 5km heat grid in Tangpu Industrial
Park, Anji County, Zhejiang Province. Benefiting from
the continuous strengthening of heat grid construction
and expansion of heating market of the Group, for
the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s heat
sales volume increased by 44.23% to 173,791 tons as
compared to 120,494 tons in 2020, the revenue from
sales of heat increased by 53.08% to RMB53,650,000
as compared to RMB35,047,000 in 2020, the
contribution margin ratio of sales of heat rose by 10.98
percentage points to 26.92% as compared to 15.94%
in 2020. Due to the increase in heat sales volume,
the consumption of natural gas for heating increased
37.28% to 15,996,278 m® as compared to 11,651,974
m?3 in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year, ZDRC adjusted the volume tariff of
natural gas power generating units and gate station
price for natural gas (inclusive of value-added tax (VAT))
for several times. After several adjustments during the
year, the volume tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Zhejiang
Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power Co., Ltd. (“Deneng
Power Plant”) and Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural
Gas Power Co., Ltd. (“Bluesky Power Plant”) under the
Group was adjusted from RMBO0.6319/kilowatt hour
(kWh) at the beginning of the year to RMBO0.7027/
kWh at the end of the year, representing an increase
of approximately 11.20%; the volume tariff (inclusive
of VAT) of Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power
Co., Ltd. (“Jingxing Power Plant”) was adjusted from
RMBO0.6319/kWh at the beginning of the year to
RMBO0.9405/kWh at the end of the year, representing
an increase of approximately 48.84%; the volume
tariff (inclusive of VAT) of Anji Power Plant and Quzhou
Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal Power Co., Ltd. (“Quzhou
Power Plant”) was adjusted from RMBO0.5719/
kWh at the beginning of the year to RMB0.6453/
kWh at the end of the year, representing an increase
of approximately 12.83%; the price of natural gas
(inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing Power Plant was adjusted
from RMB2.62/m® at the beginning of the year to
RMB4.11/m® at the end of the year, representing an
increase of approximately 56.87%; the price of natural
gas (inclusive of VAT) of the remaining power plants
under the Group was adjusted from RMB2.62/m® at
the beginning of the year to RMB3.05/m® at the end
of the year, representing an increase of approximately
16.41%; the capacity tariff of the power plants
(inclusive of VAT) remained unchanged. However, as
a result of a cut in the capacity tariff for 16% with
effective from 1 January 2022 announced by ZDRC
during the year, the capacity tariff (inclusive of VAT)
of Deneng Power Plant, Bluesky Power Plant and
Jingxing Power Plant under the Group will be adjusted
from RMB470/kW per year to RMB394.8/kW per year,
and the same for Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power
Plant will be adjusted from RMB680/kW per year to
RMB571.2/kW per year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEm kDM

Equity Installed Capacity EEREEE
As at 31 December 2021, the equity installed capacity N TE - —F+_RB=+—H &xEBREAE
of power plants held and operated by the Group are as RSN EEHm s RS 82BNT
follows:
Equity
Installed Equity installed
Power plant Category capacity interest capacity
BER BEMY RUsE x RzZREEE
(MW) (%) (MW)
(K E) (%) (K E)
Bluesky Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
=X EH KRR
Deneng Power Plant Natural gas 112 100 112
BAEE R AR
Jingxing Power Plant Natural gas 75 100 75
RE B AR
Photovoltaics 0.22 100 0.22
R
Anji Power Plant Natural gas 158 100 158
25 Bk RAR
Photovoltaics 0.36 100 0.36
VAR
Quzhou Power Plant Natural gas 230 100 230
RN RAR
Photovoltaics 0.15 100 0.15
R
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Production Volume
Natural Gas Power Generation

In order to facilitate the the Dual Tariff Policy, the
relevant government authorities in Zhejiang Province
have organised the 2021 production plan for natural
gas power generating units based on the peak demand
within the power grid during the year. In response to
the adjustment to the overall electricity procurement
demand in Zhejiang Province according to the safety
requirements of regional power grid in 2021 and the
Group’s active participation in the trial run of the
trading in electricity spot market carried out in Zhejiang
Province during the year, the production volume by
natural gas power generating units of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 decreased by 0.48%
to 383,230.2MWh (equivalent to approximately 557.8
hours of full load power generation) as compared to
385,094.6MWh (equivalent to approximately 560.5
hours of full load power generation) in 2020.

Photovoltaic Power Generation

The electricity generated from the Group’s photovoltaic
generating units is mainly used to supplement the
auxiliary power consumption rate of the power plants,
and the remainder will be sold to the power grid.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, photovoltaics
production volume of the Group was approximately
791MWh (2020: approximately 771MWh), of which
approximately 100MWh (2020: approximately 85MWh)
was sold to the power grid.

Through photovoltaic power generation during the
year, the Group saved power consumption cost of
RMB348,000 (2020: RMB369,000) and realised a
revenue from sales of heat of RMB138,000 (2020:
RMB131,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

Heat Sales Volume

The Anji Power Plant and Quzhou Power Plant under
the Group provide steam to manufacturers near heating
pipelines. During the year, the Group completed the
construction of approximately 5km heat grid in Tangpu
Industrial Park, Anji County, Zhejiang Province, and
cooperated with enterprises in the park to use their
biomass boilers as peak shaving boilers to carry
out heating trial run for heating operation in Tangpu
Industrial Park, and has been introducing heat users
gradually.

During the year, benefiting from the continuous
strengthening of heat grid construction and expansion
of heating market of the Group, the Group’s heat
sales volume for the year ended 31 December 2021
increased by 44.23% to 173,791 tons as compared
to 120,494 tons in 2020; the average selling price
(inclusive of VAT) increased by 6.17% to approximately
RMB336.48/ton as compared to approximately
RMB316.92/ton in 2020.

The revenue and contribution margin (calculated based
on revenue from sales of heat minus variable costs
associated with the heating production) from sales of
heat of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 were RMB53,650,000 (2020: RMB35,047,000)
and RMB14,444,000 (2020: RMB5,585,000),
respectively. The contribution margin ratio for sales
of heat was 26.92% (2020: 15.94%), representing an
increase of 10.98 percentage points as compared to
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fuel Cost and Natural Gas Usage

All power plants under the Group use natural gas as
fuel for power generation, while Anji Power Plant and
Quzhou Power Plant under the Group also use natural
gas as fuel for heating at the same time. Natural gas
is the only source of fuel for the Group and is mainly
provided by the supplier of the Group, namely Zhejiang
Zheneng Natural Gas Pipeline Network Co., Ltd. During
the year, under the organisation of the Energy Bureau
in Zhejiang Province, the power plants under the Group
(except Jingxing Power Plant) signed a special contract
for natural gas sales from April 2021 to October 2021
with PetroChina Company Limited Zhejiang Sale
Branch, with a total contract volume of 100.94 million
m?, and the unit price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT)
was RMB2/mé.

The natural gas price in Zhejiang Province is
determined by ZDRC. According to the adjustment of
natural gas price made by ZDRC during the year, the
price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of Jingxing Power
Plant was adjusted from RMB2.62/m? at the beginning
of the year to RMB4.11/m® at the end of the year,
representing an increase of approximately 56.87%; the
price of natural gas (inclusive of VAT) of the remaining
power plants under the Group was adjusted from
RMB2.62/m?® at the beginning of the year to RMB3.05/
m?® at the end of the year, increasing by approximately
16.41%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

Due to the increase in production volume and heat
sales volume during the year, the Group’s total
consumption of natural gas for the year ended 31
December 2021 was 102,768,108 m?® (including
15,996,278 m?® for heating), representing an increase
of 6.58% as compared to 96,420,405 m? (including
11,651,974 m® for heating) in 2020. The Group’s
average unit fuel cost for power generation was
approximately RMB504.36/MWh (2020: approximately
RMB490.86/MWh), representing an increase of 2.75%
as compared to 2020; the increase in the average
unit fuel cost of power generation was mainly due to
the increase in the average cost of natural gas during
the year. The average unit fuel cost of heating was
approximately RMB201.80/ton (2020: approximately
RMB218.10/ton), representing a decrease of 7.47% as
compared to 2020; the decrease in the average unit
fuel cost of heating was mainly due to the improvement
of heating efficiency as a result of the increase in heat
supply during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, fuel costs
amounted to RMB228,361,000, representing an
increase of 6.06% as compared to RMB215,307,000
in 2020. Fuel costs accounted for 94.24% of the
related revenue (i.e., volume tariff revenue (excluding
revenue from photovoltaic power generation) and
revenue from sales of heat), representing a decrease
of 2.57 percentage points as compared to 96.81% in
2020. Such decrease was mainly benefitted from the
improvement of heating efficiency as a result of the
increase of heat supply during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
was RMB103,825,000, representing a decrease
of RMB20,365,000 or 16.40%, as compared to
RMB124,190,000 in 2020. For the year ended 31
December 2021, the basic and diluted earnings per
share of the Company amounted to RMB0.226,
representing a decrease of 16.61% as compared to
RMBO0.271 in 2020.

Revenue

Revenue of the Group comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue, revenue from sales of heat and
revenue from provision of operation and maintenance
services. Benefiting from the increase in the Group’s
heat sales volume and the average selling price of heat,
revenue of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to RMB601,573,000, representing an
increase of RMB21,333,000 or 3.68% as compared to
RMB580,240,000 in 2020.

Operating Expenses

During the year, the Group’s operating expenses
mainly comprised fuel consumption, depreciation
and amortisation, staff costs and administrative
expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group’s operating expenses were RMB399,035,000,
representing an increase of RMB10,328,000 or 2.66%
as compared to RMB388,707,000 in 2020. The
increase in operating expenses was mainly due to the
increase in fuel costs along with the heat supply.

Profit from Operations

Benefiting from the increase in heat supply and the
improvement in heating efficiency, the Group’s profit
from operations for the year ended 31 December
2021 was RMB202,538,000, representing an increase
of RMB11,005,000 or 5.75% as compared to
RMB191,533,000 in 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2021, net finance
costs of the Group amounted to RMB53,415,000,
representing a significant increase of RMB30,763,000
or 135.81% as compared to RMB22,652,000 in 2020.
The significant increase in net finance costs was
primarily due to the increase in interest expenses during
the year and the absence of a one-off substantial
foreign exchange gain similar to that in 2020 when
the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC distributed profits
to their holding companies in Hong Kong while the
exchange rate between the declaration date and the
actual payment date significantly fluctuated.

Income Tax

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
PRC, the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC are subject
to the unified tax rate of 25%. For the year ended
31 December 2021, income tax expenses of the
Group amounted to RMB50,399,000, representing an
increase of RMB2,721,000 or 5.71% as compared to
RMB47,678,000 in 2020. The increase in income tax
expense was due to the increase in deferred tax arising
from the recognition of withholding tax on retained
profits of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, as the
Group completed the acquisition of Quzhou Power
Plant in September 2020, and the retained profits
of Quzhou Power Plant before acquisition had been
distributed to its former shareholder, which resulted
in the accrued withholding tax for the year 2020 only
covered the net profit of Quzhou Power Plant from
October 2020 to December 2020 while the accrued
withholding tax for the year 2021 covered the full-year
net profit of Quzhou Power Plant for 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Earnings per Share

For the year ended 31 December 2021, profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to RMB103,825,000 (2020:
RMB124,190,000). The basic and diluted earnings per
share amounted to RMB0.226, representing a decrease
of 16.61% as compared to RMB0.271 in 2020.

Major Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group had no major acquisition and disposal
relating to its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
during the year.

Significant Investment Activities

The Group had no significant investment activity during
the year.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are
denominated in Renminbi (RMB) and Hong Kong
Dollar (HKD). As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash
equivalents of the Group amounted to RMB76,087,000
(31 December 2020: RMB131,964,000), of which
RMB6,820,000 (31 December 2020: RMB48,753,000)
was denominated in HKD.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had current
assets of RMB228,693,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB239,543,000), current liabilities of RMB565,303,000
(81 December 2020: RMB453,781,000) and net current
liabilities of RMB336,610,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB214,238,000) with a current ratio of 0.40 (31
December 2020: 0.53). The decrease in current ratio
was mainly attributable to the substantial increase in
current liabilities due to the inclusion of shareholder’s
loans with maturities of less than one year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

As at 31 December 2021, the Groups had unused
credit facilities granted by Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Wanxiang Finance”), a subsidiary of Wanxiang Group
Corporation (“Wanxiang Group”), of RMB309 million
(2020: RMB196 million).

Sources of funds of the Group are mainly cash inflows
from operating activities and loans granted by banks
and related parties. The Group regularly monitors
its gearing ratio to control its capital structure. At
the same time, the Group also regularly monitors its
liquidity position, projected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, as well as
maintains long-term sound relationships with major
banks to ensure that it has sufficient liquidity to meet its
working capital requirements and future development
needs.

Debts

All the debts of the Group are denominated in RMB
and HKD. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
total debts of RMB1,018,947,000 (31 December
2020: RMB1,181,844,000), including shareholder’s
loan of HK$113,917,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB93,138,000) (31 December 2020: HK$108,602,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB91,404,000) and lease
liabilities of HK$399,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB326,000) (31 December 2020: HK$134,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB113,000)).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE w2
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Details of the Group’s debts as at 31 December of
2021 and 2020 are listed below:

2021 2020

—E-—%F —E-TH

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AEBTT

Unsecured loans from related parties IR T E; 531,421 444,445

Unsecured bank loans guaranteed FH 8 B 75 4 (R B9 FR K 4R

by related parties RITE™ 115,924 330,745

Unsecured bank loans EIKFIRITTER 70,093 =

Shareholder’s loan REER 93,138 91,404

Consideration payable B E 208,045 309,462

Lease liabilities HEEaRE 326 5,788

Total Hat 1,018,947 1,181,844
The above debts are repayable as follows: LM EBENEI RN T ¢

2021 2020

g% BE =

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARBT T

Within 1 year =SS (7Y 486,049 377,621

Over 1 year but less than 2 years BB —FEmFERN 349,898 624,904

Over 2 years but less than 5 years HBEmEEREFRN 183,000 179,319

Total 485t 1,018,947 1,181,844

Among the above debts, RMB301,509,000 (31
December 2020: RMB406,654,000) were fixed-rated
debts, of which RMB93,464,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB91,517,000) were denominated in HKD. The
remaining debts were denominated in RMB and subject
to adjustment in accordance with relevant regulations
of the People’s Bank of China, bearing interests at
interest rates from 4.35% to 4.9% (2020: 4.35% to
4.9%) per annum.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as
total debts (including interest-bearing borrowings,
shareholder’s loan, consideration payable and lease
liabilities, as shown in the consolidated statement of
financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as total equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company (as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position) plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 56.74% (31 December 2020: 61.72%).

Capital Expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
invested RMB17,580,000 (2020: RMB15,822,000) in
the construction of heat grid and the technological
renovation of equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital
commitments of RMB56,449,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB75,678,000) for the construction of the heat grid
(ohase Il) of Anji Power Plant and the technological
renovation and maintenance of power generation units.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
assets pledged.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no
material contingent liability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Exchange Rate Risk

The Group primarily operates its business in the
PRC and most of the transactions are settled in
RMB. Except for certain cash and cash equivalents,
borrowings and lease liabilities that are denominated
in HKD, the Group’s assets and liabilities are mainly
denominated in RMB. The Group considers that its
current foreign exchange risk is insignificant and
therefore has not hedged it through any derivative for
the time being. However, the management of the Group
will continue monitoring its foreign currency exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign exchange
risks should the need arise.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of
301 employees, excluding 10 trainees (31 December
2020: 293 employees, excluding 7 trainees). For the
year ended 31 December 2021, total employees’
remuneration (including Directors’ remuneration and
benefits) was RMB37,484,000 (2020: RMB34,634,000).
The Group determines employees’ remuneration
according to industry practices, financial performance
and employees’ performance. In addition, the Group
provides employees with training and benefits, such as
insurance, medical benefits and mandatory provident
fund contributions, with an aim to retain talents of all
levels for further contribution to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERE®KRD

Prospects

2022 will be a challenging year for Puxing Energy.
The full implementation of trading in electricity spot
market in Zhejiang Province and the cut in capacity
tariff will bring comparative great changes to the
operation and power generation mode of the Group’s
power plants with peak shaving as their main roles
and bring a severe test to the profitability of Puxing
Energy. The Group will closely follow the development
of the electricity sales market, study the profit model
of electricity sales, strengthen the development of
heating business, and cooperate with the continuous
promotion of refined management and strict cost
control, so as to minimise the impact of policy changes.
At the same time, the Group expects to obtain
approvals from relevant government authorities within
2022 to commence the construction of the main lines
from Anji Power Plant to Tangpu Industrial Park and
Kangshan Industrial Park, and to complete the relevant
construction in 2023 as planned.

Looking ahead, the government of PRC’s firm
commitment to the “double carbon” goal of peaking
carbon emission and achieving carbon neutrality,
firm acceleration in the development of new energy,
optimisation of its energy structure, and embarkation
on a green, low-carbon and circular development
path will bring huge opportunities to the Group for
transforming into an integrated energy supplier.
The Group will continue taking the development of
diversified energy business as its goal, strive for
different types of energy projects, and make unremitting
efforts to enhance the Group’s long-term growth
potential and shareholder value.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEHREEAEBRE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XU Anliang (“Mr. Xu”), aged 58, was appointed
as the chairman of the Board (the “Chairman”), an
executive Director, an authorised representative of the
Company (the “Authorised Representative”) under rule
3.05 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), the chairman of
the nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination
Committee”) and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Board (‘Remuneration Committee”)
in April 2021. Mr. Xu graduated from Jiangxi University
of Finance and Economics in 1984 with a bachelor’'s
degree in economics, majoring in trade economics. He
graduated from the Central China Normal University in
1999 with a master’s degree in economics, majoring in
regional economics. He also graduated from the Nankai
University in 2006 with a doctor’s degree in economics,
majoring in political economics. Mr. Xu is a non-
practicing member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a qualified fund practitioner of
the Asset Management Association of China.

Mr. Xu has over 30 years of experience working in
government institutions. From July 1987 to August
1994, he served as a principal staff member of
the Special Commissioner’'s Office of the National
Audit Office in Guangzhou. From August 1994 to
July 2016, he held various positions successively in
the departments of Shenzhen Municipal People’s
Government. He then worked as the chairman of the
board of director and the president of China Insurance
Investment Co., Ltd. from August 2016 to January
2019 before joining Wanxiang Group (the ultimate
controlling company of the Company) in June 2019. Mr.
Xu is currently the senior executive vice president of
Wanxiang Group and a director of Anergy International
Limited (“Anergy International”), and holds various
positions in the subsidiaries of Wanxiang Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEkEHREEANERE

Mr. WEI Junyong (“Mr. Wei”), aged 53, joined the
Company in September 2015 as a non-executive
Director. Over the years serving in the Company,
Mr. Wei has been the Chairman, a non-executive
Director, an Authorised Representative, the chairman
of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee. He is currently the executive
Director, the director of certain subsidiaries of the
Company, namely Puxing Tian (HK) Limited, Puxing
Neng (HK) Limited, Puxing Xing (HK) Limited and
Puxing An (HK) Limited, and the chairman and director
of Quzhou Power Plant.

Mr. Wei graduated from Harbin Engineering University
in 1991 with a bachelor’s degree in engineering,
majoring in electronic engineering, and from China
Europe International Business School in 2008 with
a master’s degree in management, majoring in
business administration. Mr. Wei has over 20 years
of experience in corporate operations management
and has held various key management positions in
Ping An Insurance (Group) Company of China, Ltd.
and its subsidiaries. Since 2009, Mr. Wei had acted
as a director, the president, an executive committee
member, the financial officer and the chief financial
officer of Minsheng Life Insurance Co., Ltd. Mr. Wei is
currently the director of Puxing International Limited
(“Puxing International”) and a non-executive director of
Wanxiang Qianchao Co., Ltd., a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange and ultimately controlled by
Wanxiang Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSE Chi Man (“Mr. Tse”), aged 68, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s degree
and a master’'s degree in business administration
from the University of Texas, Arlington. Mr. Tse has
over 20 years of experience in finance and business
development management. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Tse held various positions in a number
of organisations, including as a director of Chase
Manhattan Asia Limited, a mergers and acquisitions
director of Inchcape Pacific Limited, an executive
director of Lerado Group (Holding) Company Limited
and a managing director of Dresdner Kleinwort Benson
(China) Limited. Mr. Tse worked at Imagi International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange, from 1999 to 2008 and was appointed as
a director in 2004, and as the chief financial officer
in 2007 who was responsible for overseeing the
company’s accounting and finance, administration and
human resources functions. Mr. Tse was also a member
of the Design Institute Advisory Board of Vocational
Training Council.

Mr. YAO Xianguo (“Mr. Yao”), aged 69, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in May 2009. Mr. Yao holds a master’s degree in
economics from Fudan University. He is currently a
professor at the School of Public Affairs, Zhejiang
University, a member of The Expect Evaluation
Committee of National Social Science Foundation
of China, an executive vice-chairman of the China
Industrial Economic Association and a member of
the Zhejiang Government Advisory Council. Mr. Yao
is currently an independent non-executive director of
UniTTEC Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. He was also an independent non-
executive director of Hithink RoyalFlush Information
Network Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, from December 2013 to March 2020.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Mr. YU Wayne W. (“Mr. Yu”), aged 59, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director
in August 2012. Mr. Yu holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration degree, a Master of Arts (Economics)
degree and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. Mr. Yu is a
Chartered Financial Analyst and is currently a professor
of City University of Hong Kong. Before joining City
University of Hong Kong, Mr. Yu was a professor of
Hong Kong Polytechnic University and an assistant
professor of the School of Business at Queen’s
University in Canada. Mr. Yu is currently an independent
non-executive director of Zhejiang Haers Vacuum
Containers Co., Ltd. and Richinfo Technology Co., Ltd.,
companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange,
and a member of the Oversight, Policy and Governance
Committee of the Financial Reporting Council.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management of the Group (the “Senior
Management”) comprises the executive Directors
and the secretary of the Company, namely, Mr. Lai
Chi Fung. The biographical details of the Senior
Management are set out under the heading “Executive
Directors” above and in below respectively:

Mr. LAl Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”), aged 41, was
appointed as the company secretary and an authorised
representative of the Company in July 2017. Mr. Lai
holds a Bachelor of Business Administration degree
with honours in Accounting and is a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
He has over 15 years of experience in auditing,
accounting, financial management and company
secretarial practice.
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report
together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in the development, operation and management of
power plants fueled by natural gas in the PRC. Details
of the activities and other particulars of its principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the
year and a discussion on the Group’s future business
development are set out in the Chairman’s Statement
as well as the Management Discussion and Analysis
on pages 8 to 11 and pages 12 to 26 of this annual
report, respectively. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 12 to 26 of this
annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Company is one of the earliest enterprises entering
the natural gas power generation field in the PRC and
is aware of its responsibility towards environmental
protection. The Group, which commits to sustainable
development of the environment and the society, has
continuously input resources and implemented the
emission management policy of all kinds of pollutant
as well as other environmental protection management
standards to reduce the impact of its business
operation on the environment.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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For further information about the environmental policies
and performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021, please refer to the environmental,
social and governance (ESG) report to be issued before
end of May 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

As an entity incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
listed in Hong Kong, the Company is mainly governed
by the Companies Act (as revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), the Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong
Kong (Cap. 571) (the “SFO”) and the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange on the corporate level. Each of the
committees of the Board has its own terms of reference
defining its respective rights, duties and obligation.
The Board adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of
Conduct”) regarding the securities transactions of the
Directors and relevant employees (as defined in code
provision A.6.4 of the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules) on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the “Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

At the operational level, the Group conducted
its business in accordance with, among others,
the Electric Power Law of the PRC and all other
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC in relation
to the electric power industry, energy conservation,
environmental protection and safety production. In
addition, all business units of the Group have acted in
compliance with the local labour laws and regulations.
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During the year, to the best of the Directors’
knowledge, there is no material breach of or non-
compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the
Group which has a significant impact on its business
and operations.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group understands that it is important to maintain
good relationship with its employees, customers,
suppliers, governments and business associates to
fulfil its long-term goals and support its development.
To enhance its competitiveness, the Group aims
at delivering high quality services to its customers
continuously. During the year, there was no material
or significant dispute between the Group and its
stakeholders.

For further information about the Group’s key
relationships with its employees, customers and
suppliers for the year ended 31 December 2021,
please refer to the ESG report to be issued before end
of May 2022.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Risks and uncertainties involved in the business
operations of the Group may affect the Group’s
financial conditions or growth prospects. The
Group has been focusing on the control of risks
and uncertainties with the aim of understanding
and addressing the concerns of stakeholders, and
accepting them in an informed way. Details of the risk
management framework of the Group are set out in
the section headed “Risk Management and Internal
Control” in the Corporate Governance Report of this
annual report, and the key risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group are listed below:

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFEERS

FROMEFAMAN AERTEESERWN
AETBERIRERNBEIMBEET RE
BERERTE-

B E &

FERFRHFEEESE TR HED BFK
EBEBAMFRIBAHBEREREBRK
XFHERNERM - RIERHEBF I KE
EHRAELFERHEERST R K&
EHEEFMNEZBALTEERNEREUD

BB E_T_—F+_RBA=+—HILEFE
AEEHREEE - FERAMEEBEZMBEN
E—TEMN FE2EBEN _SE__E£REBE
AIHEMNIRIE - HERERRS

FERBEAEERR

FEBEXFEEMIREAR RN EERR
RS EFERNY B RINIBRAR
AEE-HEFEIEFRBR I RERR S
T Y RRIER ) EFTRERIS IR > 6 BUA
BANFTUEM - REBNEREEERS
BHRAFEREEELRRS ABREERA
BRERE —8 ) RAEBAEERNEERRK
AEERZEHIMT :

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —Z”-—FHFERS




DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFERS

Risk relating to price fluctuation and supplies of
natural gas

The business of the Group relies exclusively on natural
gas as fuel source which is currently provided by
only one to two suppliers. If there is a shortage or
interruption in the supply of natural gas in Zhejiang
province, the business of the Group may be materially
and adversely affected. In addition, costs of natural gas
represented a significant proportion of the operating
expenses of the Group. As the gas prices applicable
to the Group are determined by the ZDRC, an increase
in natural gas costs will increase the operating cost
of the Group and may adversely affect its profitability.
If, in the future, the government authorities decide to
increase the prices of natural gas, but not the on-grid
tariffs, or the on-grid tariffs are not adjusted accordingly
in a timely manner, or the rate of increase in on-grid
tariffs is less than the rate of increase in the prices of
natural gas, the Group will not be able to pass on the
increased costs to its customers, and may adversely
affect its profitability.

Follow the gradual opening of the natural gas market
and pipe network facilities in the PRC since 2020,
the Group will actively follow up relevant information,
communicate with other natural gas suppliers on the
premise of not affecting the overall situation of the
Dual Tariff Policy, and strive to allow enterprises to
organise high-quality low-cost gas sources into the
provincial pipe network by multi-channels to reduce its
production costs.
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Risk relating to change in policies in relation to
electricity retail market

With further reform of the national electricity system
in the PRC, Zhejiang province has been one of the
pilot sites for electricity system reform since 2020.
The change of electricity retail market policies created
opportunities for the Group to expand and diversify
its customer base. However, the operations of the
Group may also be affected by entering the electricity
retail market, such as increased complexity of the
business mode, market fluctuation of exchange tariffs
and other factors. The Group will actively follow policy
guidance, intensify the research on state policies, and
take various measures to assess the risks and benefits
that may affect the Group by changes in the electricity
market so as to seize the opportunities resulted from
the relevant risks.

Risk relating to change in PRC government
policies to electric power industry

In September 2021, the PRC government announced
a reduction of incentives to the Group with effect from
1 January 2022 which will adversely affect both the
revenue and profit of the Group. Despite the latest
policies implemented and incentives provided by the
PRC government are still favourable to the business of
the Group, if such policies and incentives are further
reduced or are no longer available in the future, the
financial results of the Group may be further adversely
affected.
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Risk relating to funding adequacy

With the Group’s objective to transform into an
integrated energy supplier, funding adequacy will have
an increasing impact on the Group’s operations and
development. The financial market is affected by a
number of factors such as the economic environment,
prevailing market sentiment and the liquidity of the
lending market. The Group always leverages its
capability of accessing the PRC and overseas markets
to optimise its funding sources, increase its credit
facilities and lower its financing costs. The Group
has also adopted various cost-saving and efficiency
enhancement initiatives to its business management
to minimise its administrative and operating expenses.
Despite the funding risks of the Group has been
reduced by the financial services framework agreement
(“Financial Services Agreement”) entered into between
the Group and Wanxiang Finance in 2020, the Group
may still consider raising funds from different sources to
ensure the Group can develop and operate towards its
objective when necessary.
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Risk relating to current liabilities position of the
Group

The Group had net current liabilities position since the
financial year ended 31 December 2012, which was
principally due to utilisation of short-term bank loans
and other borrowings for financing the Group’s capital
expenditure. The Group continuously seeks to convert
its short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings to
improve its net current liabilities position or settle the
short-term bank loans and other borrowings with long-
term loans. There can be no assurance that the Group
will always be able to raise the necessary finance by
borrowing from banks and other financial institutions
to finance its business, operations and capital
expenditure. In the event that the existing banking and
credit facilities do not continue to extend with similar or
more favourable facilities to the Group and the Group
fails to obtain alternative banking and credit facilities on
reasonable terms, the Group’s business and financial
position may be adversely affected. The Group may be
required to issue additional equity or debt securities
which could result in dilution to the equity interest of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”),
and the incurrence of additional indebtedness would
result in increased fixed obligations and could result in
operating covenants that restricts its operation.
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Risk relating to financial instruments

The Group is exposed to certain risks arising from
financial instruments, such as credit risk, liquidity risk
and market risk. Details of these risks are set out in
note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

The risk factors as mentioned above are not exhaustive
or comprehensive, and there may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to thereto which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material at this
moment but could turn out to be material in the future.

RESULTS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the Group’s financial position as at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 95 to 215 of this annual report.

RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.056 (2020: HK$0.10) per share for
the year ended 31 December 2021. The proposed
final dividend, if approved by the Shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company,
is expected to be paid on Thursday, 7 July 2022 to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members on Thursday, 23 June 2022.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company is
scheduled to be held on Friday, 17 June 2022 (the
“‘AGM”). A notice convening the AGM will be published
and despatched to the Shareholders in the manner
prescribed by the Listing Rules in due course.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
in the following periods during which day no transfer
of the shares of the Company (the “Shares”) will be
registered:

()  from Tuesday, 14 June 2022 to Friday, 17 June
2022 (both days inclusive), for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible
to attend and to vote at the AGM, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Monday, 13 June 2022; and

(i) on Thursday, 23 June 2022, for the purpose of
determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified
for the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 22 June 2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on page 216 of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of
the Cayman lIslands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of
its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s securities listed on the Stock
Exchange.

SHARES ISSUED

No Share was issued during the year. Details of the
Shares issued by the Company are set out in note 25(b)
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group during the year are set out in note 25(a)
to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of change in equity on page
100 of this annual report, respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had no
retained profits available for distribution. Pursuant
to the Companies Act of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium account of the Company can be
applied for payment of distributions or dividends to
the Shareholders provided that immediately following
the date on which the distribution or dividend is
proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business. Accordingly, based on the future projection
of the Group’s profit and cash inflows from operations,
the credit facilities available and the ability of the
Group to obtain or renew bank loans and other
financing facilities, the Directors believes that the
Group will generate sufficient cash flows to meet
its liabilities as and when fall due in the next twelve
months. Accordingly, the Directors determined that
the distributable reserves of the Company (including
share premium, contributed surplus and accumulated
losses of the Company) as at 31 December 2021 was
RMB340,996,000 (2020: RMB385,046,000).

DONATIONS

There was no donation made by the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation
available to Shareholders by reason of their holding of
the Shares.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There was no equity-linked agreement entered into by
the Company during the year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company does not have any share option scheme
as at 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 90.87% and
97.20% of the Group’s revenue were attributable to
the largest customer and the five largest customers
of the Group, and 55.76% and 100% of the Group’s
purchase (not including purchases of capital nature)
were attributable to the largest supplier and the only
two suppliers of the Group.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholders, who to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
issued share capital of the Company, had any interest
in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Anliang (Chairman)
(appointed on 28 April 2021)
Mr. WEI Junyong
Mr. GU Genyong
(resigned on 28 April 2021)

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED EEfEEHMRAE

fERe st &l

N _E - —F+_A=+—HBKBEEXRFER
HE R AB M ETAEREE o

ERXRREER
HE S S+ B=+—HLEEE =&
EEINIFR0.87% K%97.20% D B R B A E
BRAZEARAKRER MAEBHELRE (R
BEEARMENRE) 1955.76%K100%/5 2K
BERAEENRARERREBNWEHRE
[?‘Exﬁo

FRNEF HEBBMBANBESFAAEM
BEAXREBEITRASKU LR R ET
LT ERR REEENE AR

EF
FARBEARSAHPNESRDT :

BITES

BREZEREE (EEFR)
(R—_B_—EMA_+/\BEZET

BB LE

BAR X o
(MR=ZEBEZ—E=MA =+ /\B&EE

BIERTESE
HEXEE
Pk El S E
A fEEEE



CHANGES OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Pursuant to rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes in the information of Directors required to
be disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and
(9) of rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules subsequent to
the publication of the 2021 interim report are set out
below:

() Mr. Yu Wayne W. was appointed as a member of
the Oversight, Policy and Governance Committee
of the Financial Reporting Council with effect from
1 October 2021 for a term of two years.

BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management are set out on pages 27 to 30 of this
annual report.

RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with article 83(3) of the Company’'s
Articles of Association, any Director appointed by
the Board to fill casual vacancy shall hold office until
the first general meeting of the Company after such
appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as
an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only
until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, at each annual general meeting
of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time
being shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Details of the retiring Directors to be re-elected at the
AGM will be set out in circular to the Shareholders to
be despatched prior to the AGM.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of
its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During the year, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries, its holding companies or a subsidiary
of its holding companies was a party or were parties
and in which a Director or an entity connected with
a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

To the best knowledge of the Directors, none of
the Directors was interested in any business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACT

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-
election at the AGM has a service contract with
the Company or any of its subsidiaries that is not
determinable by the employer within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remuneration is subject to review by
the Remuneration Committee and the Board from time
to time with reference to the Directors’ performance,
experience, duties and responsibilities, the prevailing
market conditions of the industry and the Group's
remuneration policy, operating performance and
profitability with the approval from the Board. Details of
the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

During the year, the five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group comprises one Director
and four individuals, which included the Senior
Management. Details of the highest paid individuals
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section
467 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the
benefit of the Directors is currently in force and was in
force throughout the financial year ended 31 December
2021. In addition, the Company has taken out and kept
in force appropriate directors’ and officers’ liabilities
insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the
Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2021, to the knowledge of the
Company, none of the Directors or chief executive
of the Company (“Chief Executive”) or any of their
spouses or children under 18 years old had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required to be: (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which the Directors and
Chief Executive were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); (ii) entered in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO; or (iii) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or Chief Executive,
as at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other
than a Director or a Chief Executive) had, or were
taken or deemed to have interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO:
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Number of shares/

Percentage of

Capacity/ underlying shares issued share
Name of Shareholder Nature of interests held (ote capital
g1/ FR¥FRE 17 18 RA HERITRE
IR ATE EmitE g {n & g M=) BaLE
Puxing International Beneficial interest 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
2R BintEn
Anergy International ot 2 Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
73 A [ R (e2) RiEEE R
Wanxiang Group Mot 2 Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
BRI &R W= RiEEE R
Mr. Lu Weiding (“Mr. Lu”) (ote 2) Interests in a controlled 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
corporation
BRREAE (854 W= RiEEE R
M, L L= e) Interest of spouse 300,000,000 (L) 65.42%
FE Lt W) BB
BC Greater China Opportunities Beneficial interest 35,122,000 (L) 7.66%
Fund SPC - BC New Energy
Fund SP (“BC Fund SPC”)
WERPERBEES BitEm
—BC New Energy Fund SP
(TBC Fund SPC 1)
BC Capital Group Limited (4 Interests in a controlled 35,122,000 (L) 7.66%

corporation

BC Capital Group Limited ®#+) SIELEER
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(1) The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the
Shares.

(2) These Shares are held by Puxing International, which is owned as
to 100% by Anergy International, which is owned as to 100% by
Wanxiang Group which in turn is ultimately controlled by Mr. Lu.
Therefore, Anergy International, Wanxiang Group and Mr. Lu are
deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Puxing International.

(3) Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be
interested in the said Shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be
interested.

(4) These Shares are held by BC Fund SPC. BC Fund SPC is owned as
to 100% by BC Asset Management Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 100% by BC Capital Group Limited. BC Capital Group Limited
is owned as to 68% by Fullsun International Capital Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been
notified by any other persons (other than Directors or
Chief Executives) who had interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which are required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2021.

TRANSACTIONS DISCLOSED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE LISTING RULES

During the year, the Group conducted certain
related party transactions as set out in note 28
to the consolidated financial statements. Some of
these transactions constitute “continuing connected
transactions” (“CCT”) as defined in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules. Details of the CCT are summarised
below:
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Non-Exempt CCT

Set out below is information in relation to the non-
exempt CCT of the Group, particulars of which were
previously disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 22 January 2020 and the circular of
the Company dated 21 February 2020. Full text of
the announcement and circular can be found in the
“Announcements and Circulars” under the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s website.

1. On 22 January 2020, the Company entered into
the Financial Services Agreement with Wanxiang
Finance pursuant to which Wanxiang Finance
agreed to provide certain financial services,
including, inter alia, deposit services to the Group
in accordance with the terms and conditions
set out in the Financial Services Agreement.
According to the Financial Services Agreement,
the aggregate maximum daily deposit balance
(including interests) maintained by the Group
with Wanxiang Finance should not exceed
RMB170,000,000 for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2022.
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As at the date of signing of the Financial Services
Agreement, Wanxiang Finance was a subsidiary
of Wanxiang Group. Since Wanxiang Group was a
collective-owned enterprise and the composition
of a majority of the board of directors of Wanxiang
Group was controlled by Mr. Lu (being the
then ultimate controlling shareholder indirectly
interested in approximately 65.42% of the issued
share capital of the Company), the Company
understood that Mr. Lu was the actual controller
of Wanxiang Group. Accordingly, Wanxiang Group
and Wanxiang Finance, both being associates of
Mr. Lu, were connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Financial Services Agreement constituted
CCT of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and were subject to
reporting, announcement, annual review and the
independent Shareholders’ approval.

With reference to the announcement of the
Company dated 8 September 2021, due to the
changes on the shareholder structure of the
Company on 3 September 2021, Wanxiang Group
became the ultimate controlling company of the
Company, and the transactions contemplated
under the Financial Services Agreement
continually constituted CCT of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
were subject to same reporting and disclosure
requirements.

The aggregate maximum daily balance (including
interests) maintained by the Group with Wanxiang
Finance during the year ended 31 December
2021 was approximately RMB134,766,000 (2020:
RMB126,436,000).
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The

Board, including the independent non-

executive Directors (“INEDs”), has reviewed the
CCT and confirmed that the CCT were:

(i)

(i

(i)

entered into by the Group in its ordinary and
usual course of businesses;

conducted on normal commercial terms
or on terms no less favourable than those
available to or from independent third
parties; and

entered into in accordance with the
agreements governing the CCT on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the Company and its Shareholders as a
whole.

The Board, including the INEDs, also confirmed

that:

(i)

(it

the aggregate maximum daily balance
(including interests) maintained by the Group
with Wanxiang Finance during the year
ended 31 December 2021 did not exceed
the annual cap amount of RMB170,000,000
as disclosed in the circular of the Company
dated 21 February 2020; and

the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report
on the abovementioned CCT in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (revised), “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits and Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 (revised), “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The Company’s
auditor has issued its unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the CCT
of the Group in accordance with rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

Related Party Transactions

Save as disclosed above, other transactions as set
out in the section headed “Related Party Transactions”
in note 28(a) to the consolidated financial statements
constituted CCT of the Company under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, and were fully exempt from
the Shareholders’ approval, annual review and all
disclosure requirements under rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float as required under the Listing Rules throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has reviewed the annual results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the significant event of the Group after
the reporting period are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for
reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the AGM. There has been no change in auditors of the
Company in any of the preceding three years.

By order of the Board

WEI Junyong
Executive Director

30 March 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximise
operational efficiency, corporate values and
Shareholders’ returns. The Company has adopted and
applied the principles of the code provisions of the CG
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
The Company will continue to upgrade its internal
control system, strengthen its risk management and
reinforce its corporate governance structure.

Save for the deviation as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with the code provisions and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2021:

Code Provision C.1.2

Code provision C.1.2 of the CG Code provides that
management of the Company (the “Management”)
should provide all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail to enable the Board
as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties
under rule 3.08 and Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
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For some months during the year, although the
Management did not provide all members of the
Board with updates on a monthly basis due to the
carelessness of the responsible staff, the Management
has provided to all members (including INEDs) of the
Board updates giving a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position
and prospects in sufficient detail at the regular
Board meetings of the Company held quarterly.
The Management also, in a timely manner, provided
updates on any material changes to the performance,
position and prospects of the Company, to enable
each Director and the Board as whole to discharge
their duties required by the Listing Rules. In order to
maintain high standards of corporate governance, the
Management has revisited and enhanced the related
procedures, and will ensure the strict compliance with
this Code Provision in the future.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct in
respect of the Directors’ and relevant employees’
dealings in the securities of the Company on terms no
less than the required standard set out in the Model
Code.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors
regarding the compliance with the Code of Conduct.
All Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the required standard set out in the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.
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The Board currently comprises:

Executive Directors

Mr. XU Anliang (Chairman)
Mr. WEI Junyong

INEDs

Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance
of core competence with regard to the business of
the Group so as to provide effective leadership and
the requisite expertise to the Group. There are three
INEDs and at least one of them possesses appropriate
professional qualification or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by rule
3.10 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs represent at least
one-third of the Board as required by rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. The executive Directors and the Senior
Management have extensive management experience
in the Company’s business.

The biographical details of the Directors and the
Senior Management are set out in the “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management” on pages 27 to 30
of this annual report, which demonstrate a diversity of
skills, expertise, experience and qualifications.
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The Board and the Management

The Board, who is responsible for leadership and
control of the Group, is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals, and assumes
the responsibilities of the ESG of the Group. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for implementing its business strategies and managing
the daily operations of the Group’s business to the
executive Directors and the Management in which the
Management should report back or obtain prior Board
approval. Management for the purpose of this report
refers to the Senior Management whose biographical
details are disclosed in this annual report, and all
general managers, deputy general managers and
departmental heads. Management is responsible for the
day-to-day operations, management and administration
of the Group under the leadership of the executive
Directors. They also execute and implement strategies
and directions determined by the Board. Management
may be invited to attend Board meetings to report
and engage in discussion with the Board in respect of
strategy, budget planning, progress and performance
updates. This is to ensure that the Board can have
a general understanding of the Group’s business so
that they can make informed decisions for the benefit
of the Group. Management is required to answer
any questions or challenges posed by the Board. All
Directors have separate and independent access to the
Management whenever necessary.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive should be
separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The Chairman and the Chief Executive (i.e.
the general manager of the Company) are separately
held by Mr. Wei Junyong and Mr. Gu Genyong (before
28 April 2021) and Mr. Xu Anliang and Mr. Wei Junyong
(since 28 April 2021), respectively.

The Chairman provides leadership to, and oversee
the functioning of, the Board to ensure that it acts
in the best interests of the Group, and the Chief
Executive has the overall responsibility for carrying out
the strategy and direction set by the Board and for
managing the Group’s business.

Board Meetings

The Board meets approximately quarterly and on other
occasions when warranted by circumstances. During
the year, the Board held six meetings, of which four
were regular Board meetings. Notices for regular Board
meetings are given to each Director at least fourteen
days prior to the meeting whereby the Directors can
put forward their proposed items into the agenda.
The agenda and the relevant Board papers are then
circulated to the Directors at least three days before the
Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

In addition to regular Board meetings, under code
provision A.2.7 of the CG Code, the Chairman should
at least annually hold meetings with INEDs without the
presence of other Directors (the “Chairman and INEDs
Meeting”). During the year, a Chairman and INEDs
Meeting was held.
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Number of meetings and Directors’ attendance ERNREREFTHERR

Details of the Directors’ attendance at the Company’s EFHFEFRBITNALATRERE ES
general meetings, the meetings of the Board, the Audit T EBEZEZER FNEESMRELEETRY
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the ENEEREABUFHATESZENFEBH
Nomination Committee and the Chairman and INEDs §'J§D—F 5

meeting held during the year are set out below:

Audit Remuneration Nomination Chairman
General Board Committee Committee Committee and INEDs
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EERERBIL
EXT ERZET FHNERT REEE5T  EHGTES
BRAE &= ] 2 S Ef
Executive Directors
BTESR
Mr. Xu Anliang (appointed on 28 April 2021) 11 3/3 N/A N/A N/A 11
HREREE RITZ—EMAZ+/\HEZMD) TEA THER TEA
Mr. WEI Junyong 0/1 4/6 N/A 2/2 2/2 N/A
MHaBLE Nl T EH
Mr. Gu Genyong (resigned on 28 April 2021) N/A 3/3 N/A N/A N/A N/A
BERAGE RI2T—FEEZ+/\B&ED AEH TEH THER TEH AEA
INEDs
BIFHTES
Mr. TSE Chi Man 1 6/6 2/2 2/2 N/A 1
HEXRE TEH
Mr. YAO Xianguo 11 6/6 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
BhEE A
Mr. YU Wayne W. 11 6/6 2/2 N/A 2/2 11
ARREE TEHR
Relationship amongst Directors SRR
There are no financial, business, family or other EEENEZHE LESEERETHERZ
material/relevant relationships amongst the Board B BETAME EE - REREMELR S
members and in particular, between the Chairman and MEREBIRAF o
the Chief Executive.
Non-executive Directors JERITES
The term of appointment of all non-executive Directors KABIFMBFBITES (BREBILFEHNITE
(including INEDs) are three years, subject to early B)NEREA=F o REBEAABABE
termination in accordance with the Company’s Articles 2AREI s ETAR BB B 2 0k B B 7R A EE A
of Association, Listing Rules or applicable laws and RIE - RIBAABHABERMA > =022 —B
regulations. Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of X (BREFNTES) HES-FEREE
Association, one-third of the Directors (including non- FABE/NVGFERE R A EEET

executive Directors) are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
at least once every three years.
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Independence of INEDs

All INEDs, namely Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao Xianguo
and Mr. Yu Wayne W., have served the Board for
over nine years. While this could be relevant to the
determination of independence of the relevant INEDs,
it is well-recognised that an individual’s independence
cannot be determined arbitrarily on the basis of a
set period of time. In assessing the independence of
the INEDs, the Board and the Nomination Committee
considered the individual Directors’ character, integrity
and judgement as demonstrated by their commitment
and contribution to the Board during their years of
service and their willingness to continuously exercise
their independent judgement and to provide the
Company with their objective views. The Board and the
Nomination Committee are of the view that there is no
indication or evidence that the length of their services
has any adverse impact on their independence and the
Company has benefited greatly from their contribution
and valuable insights derived from their in-depth
knowledge of the Company, and believe that their
experience and skills can bring valuable contribution
to the diversity of the Board. In determining the
independence of the INEDs, the Board and the
Nomination Committee followed the guidelines as set
out in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
has received annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of
the INEDs, namely Mr. Tse Chi Man, Mr. Yao Xianguo
and Mr. Yu Wayne W., and concluded that all INEDs are
independent.

Continuous Professional Development of
Directors

Upon appointment to the Board, each new Directors
receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
package to ensure that he understands the business
and operations of the Group and is sufficiently aware of
his responsibility and obligation under the Listing Rules
and relevant regulatory requirements.
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TEERBRS

The Directors are kept informed on the developments
of the statutory and regulatory regime, and the changes
in the business markets so as to facilitate them to fulfil
their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant statutory requirements. Continuous
briefings and professional development for Directors
will be arranged by the Company when considered
necessary.

During the year, the Company has coordinated training
courses for the Directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. According
to the records provided by the Directors, the Directors
participated in the following continuous professional
development (“CPD”) during the year:

EEBRETZERGENEERUKRES
miHz 81 WERRE EHRARBREE
EREBRBTRE ARAARNEBSBERS
EFTHFEHBRAEERER-

FRARFEREFELHTRIRBBAEER
ERBEFRZHEIRE - REBEEFRERMHNEC
BOEFRNEANSEUTHEZXER (5
BEERR)

Type of CPD
FESEZRER
Reading
materials
relevant to
Attending the
training Company or
courses its business
REEZE AT
RHEBER
2migalRE BE R
Mr. XU Anliang BRERKE (RZB2Z—F v v
(appointed on 28 April 2021) MBZ+N\HEZT
Mr. WEI Junyong MBI E v 7
Mr. GU Genyong BERKEE (W2 —F v
(resigned on 28 April 2021) mA—+/\BHET)
Mr. TSE Chi Man HEXE v v
Mr. YAO Xianguo Wk A B A& v v
Mr. YU Wayne W. Al fEIE L v v
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BOARD COMMITTEES
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The Board established three board committees, namely
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board
Committees”). The terms of reference of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website. Members
of the Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to fulfil their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expense.

Audit Committee
The current members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. TSE Chi Man (Chairman)
Mr. YAO Xianguo
Mr. YU Wayne W.

All members of the Audit Committee are INEDs, and at
least one of them possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise and experience to fulfil his
duties.
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TEERBRS

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point of
communication between the Directors, the external
auditors and the internal auditors with regards to
their duties relating to financial and other reporting,
risk management, internal controls, external and
internal audits and assisting the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities by providing independent review and
supervision of financial reporting, and by satisfying
itself as to the effectiveness of the internal controls of
the Group and as to the adequacy of the external and
internal audits.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two
meetings. The attendance records are set out under
the section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.
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At the meetings, the Audit Committee performed,
inter alia, the following: (i) approved the audit service
fee for year ended 31 December 2020; (i) reviewed
and considered the audit plan for the year ended 31
December 2020 submitted by the external auditors
of the Company; (iii) reviewed the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process; (iv) reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020, the draft 2020 annual report and
the draft annual results announcement for the year
ended 31 December 2020, and recommend the same
to the Board for approval; (v) reviewed and made
recommendation to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal controls of the
Group; (vi) reviewed and make recommendation
to the Board on the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; (vii) reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board on the re-
appointment of the external auditors of the Company;
(viii) reviewed and confirmed the CCT of the Group and
recommended the same to the Board for approval;
and (ix) reviewed the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the six months ended 30 June 2021, the
draft 2021 interim report and the draft interim results
announcement for the six months ended 30 June 2021,
and recommended the same to the Board for approval.
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TEERBRS

Re-appointment of external auditors

On 30 March 2022, having reviewed the work,
independence and objectivity of KPMG, the external
auditors of the Company, the Audit Committee has
satisfied with them, and therefore recommended the
re-appointment of KPMG (who have indicated their
willingness to continue in office) as the external auditors
of the Company for the year ending 31 December 2022
for the Board’s approval. The Board has concurred
with the recommendation from the Audit Committee
on the re-appointment of the external auditors and will
propose the same for Shareholders’ approval at the
AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The current members of the Remuneration Committee
are:

Mr. YAO Xianguo (Chairman)
Mr. XU Anliang
Mr. TSE Chi Man

The Remuneration Committee is made up of two INEDs
and the Chairman, and is chaired by an INED.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible
for reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board in relation to the remuneration packages and
benefits of the Directors and the Senior Management
to ensure that the relevant individuals are fairly
rewarded in light of their contribution to the Company
with reference to their performance, and that they
receive suitable incentives to maintain high standards
of performance and to improve the Group’s and their
own performance. In connection with the review of the
remuneration package, no Director shall be involved in
deciding his own remuneration.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.
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At the meetings, the Remuneration Committee
performed, inter alias, the following: (i) reviewed
the performance and the remuneration packages
of the Directors and the Senior Management and
recommended the same to the Board for approval;
and (i) reviewed the terms of the service contracts of
executive Directors and the Senior Management, the
re-appointing Directors and for the appointment of
Director, and recommended the same to the Board for
approval.

Remuneration paid to the Senior Management

Remuneration paid to the Senior Management for the
year ended 31 December 2021 by band are as follows:

TEERKRS

gL FHEETHT (HP e UTE
?% (EREFRBREEAN SR R H
HE TEZEFEHE  RONBENTES
REhEEAB - EXEEREEEENR
BENFER LEZEFSHE-

1 FEREENEFHH
BE_T_—F+_A=+—HLEFEXM
TEREEAENFHFMZEBS DWT :

Number of
staff
BITA#
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 EHITE1,000,00078 7T 2
None of the Senior Management held any share FR BESHKREEAEBRBEARBTEME
interests of the Company during the year. o
Nomination Committee RBZEY
The current members of the Nomination Committee RBZEZEENREKRES !
are:
Mr. XU Anliang (Chairman) RERKE (FAZS)
Mr. YAO Xianguo Wk ST B e A
Mr. YU Wayne W. AIEIE L

The Nomination Committee is made up of two INEDs
and the Chairman, and is chaired by the Chairman.
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TEERBRS

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible
for, amongst other things, (i) reviewing the Board’s
diversity policy and the measurable objectives set by
the Board for implementing the Board’s diversity policy
annually, and making recommendations to the Board
on any proposed changes to the Board according
to the Company’s corporate strategy; (ii) making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; (iii) identifying individuals suitable
to be qualified as Board members; (iv) assessing the
independence of INEDs annually; and (v) deciding
whether or not a Director is able to and has adequately
carried out his duties as a Director.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy
setting out the approach to the diversification of Board
members. The Company recognises and embraces the
benefits of diversity of Board members. It endeavours
to ensure that the Board has a balance of skKills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirement of the Company’s business. The Board
will continue to apply the principle of appointments
on a merit basis with due regards for the benefits of
diversity of the Board members as a whole. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or
otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision
will be made upon the merits and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board. The
Board realised that the Company currently has a single
gender Board, and is committed to achieve gender
diversity of the Board by increasing at least one female
director before the end of year 2024 according to the
nomination policy of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The Group has adopted a nomination policy which is
disclosed as below:

1. Objective

1.1

1.2

1.3

The Nomination Committee assists the
Board in making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment of Directors, and
succession planning for Directors.

The Nomination Committee shall nominate
suitable candidates to the Board for it to
consider and make recommendations to
the Shareholders for election as Directors at
general meetings or appoint as Directors to
fill casual vacancies.

The nomination policy provides the key
selection criteria and principles of the
Nomination Committee in making such
recommendations.

2. Selection Criteria

2.1

When making recommendations regarding
the appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee shall consider a
variety of factors including without limitation
the following in assessing the suitability of
the proposed candidate:

(@) Reputation for integrity;

(b) Commitment in respect of sufficient
time and relevant interests;
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2.2

(c) Diversity in all aspects, including but
not limited to gender, ethnicity, age,
cultural and educational background,
professional experience, industrial
experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service;

(d) The strength of the candidate and the
contributions that can be made to the
Board;

(e) Compliance with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under
rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules for the
appointment of INED; and

()  Any other relevant factors as may
be determined by the Nomination
Committee or the Board from time to
time, as considered appropriate.

The appointment of any proposed candidate
to the Board or re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board shall be
made in accordance with the Company’'s
Article of Association, the laws of the
Cayman Islands, the Listing Rules and other
applicable rules and regulations.

3. Nomination Procedures
3.1

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED &

In the context of appointment of any
proposed candidate to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will deploy multiple
channels for identifying suitable director
candidates, including without limitation
referral from Directors, Shareholders,
Management, advisers of the Company and
external executive search firms or through
internal promotion of senior employees.
The Nomination Committee shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of such
individual and make recommendations for
the Board’s consideration and approval.
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3.2

3.3

3.4

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

In the context of re-appointment of any
existing member(s) of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will review the overall
contribution to the Company of the retiring
Directors and also determine whether the
retiring Directors continue to meet the
selection criteria set out in the nomination
policy. The Nomination Committee shall
make recommendations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election
at a general meeting.

For the procedures for Shareholders’
nomination of any proposed candidate
for election as a Director, please refer to
“Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director” set out in
“Corporate Governance” under the “Investor
Relations” section of the Company’s
website.

The Board shall have the final decision on
all matters relating to its recommendation of
candidates to stand for election at a general
meeting.

Approval and Review of the Nomination
Policy

The nomination policy has been approved by the
Board. The Nomination Committee will review this
policy, as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy. Any subsequent amendment of
the nomination policy shall be reviewed by the
Nomination Committee and approved by the

Board.

3.2

3.3

3.4
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TEERBRS

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two
meetings. The attendance record is set out under the
section headed “Number of meetings and Directors’
attendance” in this report.

At the meetings, the Nomination Committee performed,
inter alias, the following: (i) assessed the independence
of INEDs; (i) reviewed the re-appointment of the retiring
Directors and recommended the same to the Board for
approval for re-election by Shareholders at the 2021
annual general meeting; (iii) reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (iv)
reviewed the Board diversity policy and the measurable
objectives, and made recommendations to the Board
on proposed changes according to the Company’s
corporate strategy, if any; (v) reviewed the nomination
policy of the Company and make recommendations
to the Board on proposed modifications, if any; (vi)
reviewed the time commitments of each Directors
and confirmed the Directors are able to and have
adequately carried out their duties as a Director; and
(vii) considered the nomination of Mr. Xu Anliang as a
Director of the Company and recommended the same
to the Board for approval.

Nomination of Candidates

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the Board’s composition and nominated Mr. Wei
Junyong, Mr. Xu Anliang and Mr. Tse Chi Man to the
Board for it to recommend to the Shareholders for
re-election at the annual general meeting held at 4
June 2021. The nomination was made after taken
into account the respective contribution of the retiring
Directors to the Board and the skKills, experience,
professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the retiring Directors, with due regard
for the benefits of Board diversity.
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Corporate Governance Functions

During the year, the Board has carried out its duties
and responsibilities as set out in code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code including (i) developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training
and continuous professional development of the
Directors and the Senior Management; (iii) reviewing
and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to the employees of the Company
and the Directors (if any); and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and the
disclosure in this report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group and of the results and cash flows in the
relevant financial year. In preparing the financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Directors have selected appropriate accounting
policies, applied them consistently in accordance with
appropriate International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards and the related
interpretations, and made adjustments and estimates
that are prudent and reasonable.
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TEERBRS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB336,610,000. In view of
the circumstance, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity and performance
of the Group and its available sources of finance
in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern.
Based on the future projection of the Group’s profit
and cash inflows from operations, the credit facilities
available and the ability of the Group to obtain or renew
bank loans and other financing facilities, the Directors
believe that the Group will generate sufficient cash
flows to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due
in the next twelve months. Accordingly, the Directors
consider that there are no material uncertainties related
to the events or conditions which, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and have
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors to the
Shareholders are set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 85 to 94 of this annual report.
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TEERKRS

Auditors’ Remuneration ZE BTN &
During the year, the Company’s auditor, KPMG, FREARBZYMEER G ERTE
provided to the Company the following services: KABRMLUTRS
RMB’000
ARETr
Audit service Bt RTE
Review of 2021 interim financial report, audit ER T - —FHHAMERE B
of financial statements for the year ended 31 BE_ZE”_—F+"H=+—H
December 2021 and review of preliminary results IEEFEEN Bﬁiﬁﬁﬁuﬂzﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ?
announcements and the CCT of the Group EENERAERIFERER S 1,650
Non-audit services JEE s IRTE
Consultation services for the preparation of 2021 TECFRE-HERERRS
ESG report R B AR 143
COMPANY SECRETARY REWE

Mr. Lai Chi Fung (“Mr. Lai”) is an employee of the
Company and was appointed as the secretary of the
Company on 21 July 2017. The biography of Mr. Lai
is set out in the “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report. Mr. Lai has taken
no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional
training requirement under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules

for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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SHAREHOLDING ANALYSIS i o A7
Based on the register of members of the Company, BEARNINKRELM ARBR T =—
the shareholding distribution of the Company as at 31 F+ZA=+T—HHRESIHUT :

December 2021 is set out as below:

No. of % of issued

No. of % of Shares share

Size of shareholding Shareholders Shareholders held capital

HERT

BN E REAY (ERREAL FHRHKE  REEHL

1-1,000 1—1,0008% 59 39.86 6,221 0.00

1,001 - 5,000 1,001 —5,0008% 77 52.03 161,000 0.04

5,001 - 10,000 5,001 —10,0008% 8 2.03 19,990 0.00

10,001 - 100,000 10,001—100,0008% 6 4.05 258,000 0.06

100,001 and above 100,001 B K& Bk 3 2.03 458,154,789 99.90

Total &t 1481 100%  458,600,0002 100.00

Notes: hEs:

1 The actual number of investors is much greater as many Shares 1 BREFFZRBARNTALIR qjg%éfgf%%
are held through intermediaries including Central Clearing and HaMf (RREFRH)  BERORAEBREESKE
Settlement System of Hong Kong (CCASS). Hre

2 99.81% of all the issued Shares were held through CCASS. 2 FABHTKRHGT9.81%%KREBTREHRMR

EST=I

Details of the substantial Shareholders are disclosed FTERENFBRAFRFEIOEIBEEEE

in the section headed “Interests and Short Positions of REFERFNERRXEI—EIKEE-

Substantial Shareholders” in the Directors’ Report on

pages 46 to 48 of this annual report.

Based on publicly available information and within the BEAHENRESEMA RIEZ—F

Directors’ knowledge, approximately 34.58% of the +ZA=1+—HARALHFEA34.58%K

Shares were held by the public as at 31 December 7 ARFEREMENA130.0588EBe

2021 with a public float capitalisation of approximately
HK$130.05 million.

Certain important Shareholders’ dates in the T—EVBRFEFENE TEERFBHBRHE N AL
coming financial year are set out in the “Shareholder FHRFAESENTREER A
Information” on pages 4 to 5 of this annual report.
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2021 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

At the 2021 annual general meeting held on 4 June
2021 at Kowloon Room |, Mezzanine Floor, Kowloon
Shangri-La, 64 Mody Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong, 4
participants attended the meeting. All Directors (except
Mr. Wei Junyong, an executive Director) attended the
meeting along with the Management and external
auditor of the Company. There was a high level of votes
approving the following major items:

- Consider and adopt the 2020 audited
consolidated financial statements (100.00%)

- Declaration of 2020 final dividend (100.00%)
- Re-elect of retiring Directors (100.00%)

- Authorise the Board to fix the retiring Directors’
remuneration (100.00%)

—  Re-appointment of KPMG as the Company’s
auditor and authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration (100.00%)

- Grant a general mandate to allot, issue and
otherwise deal with Shares not exceeding 20% of
the Shares in issue (99.97 %)

—  Grant a general mandate to repurchase Shares of
not exceeding 10% Shares in issue (100.00%)

- Extend the general mandate to allot, issue and
otherwise deal with the Shares by adding the
repurchased Shares (99.97 %)
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Group recognises the Shareholders’ rights
in exercising control proportionate to their equity
ownership. As one of the measures to safeguard the
Shareholders’ interest and rights, separate resolutions
are proposed at the Shareholder’s meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of Director(s),
for the Shareholder’s consideration and voting. All
resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’ meeting
will be voted by way of poll, which is conducted
and scrutinised by the Company’s share registrar.
An explanation in relation to the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll is provided before voting, and
questions from Shareholders on voting by poll, if any,
are answered. Poll results are announced and posted
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website after the relevant meetings.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 58 of the Articles of Association of
the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written request to the
Board or the secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board
for the transaction of any business specified in such
request; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the submission of such request. If within
twenty-one days of such submission the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, Shareholder(s) may
do so in the same manner.

Procedures for directing Shareholders’
enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
to the Board in writing to the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong or by emalil
to info@puxing-enegy.com for the attention of the
secretary of the Company. The Company will not
normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Procedures for Shareholders to propose a
person for election as a Director

Pursuant to article 85 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, no person other than a Director
retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a
Director at any general meeting unless a written notice
signed by a Shareholder (other than the person to
be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention
to propose such person for election and also a written
notice signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the
head office of the Company or at the share registrar
of the Company provided that the minimum length
of the period, during which such written notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven days and that (if
the written notices are submitted after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election) the period for lodgment of such written
notice(s) shall commence on the day after the despatch
of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than seven days prior
to the date of such general meeting. Accordingly, if a
Shareholder duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting of the Company wishes to propose
a person for election as a Director at the general
meeting, he/she can deposit a signed written notice
of the intention to propose a person for election as a
Director and a signed written notice by that person
of his/her willingness to be elected together with his/
her particulars (such as qualification and experience)
and information as required to be disclosed under
rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules at the head office
of the Company at No.181-1 Hejiatang, Chongxian
Subdistrict, Linping District, Hangzhou 311108,
Zhejiang Province, PRC or at the share registrar of
the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,
Hong Kong. The period for lodgment of the notices
required will commence no earlier than the day after
the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election and end no later than
seven days prior to the date of such general meeting,
and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at
least seven days.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The up-to-date consolidated version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company (in both English and Chinese) is available
on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s
website. There is no change to the Company’s
constitutional documents during the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board believes that effective understanding,
acceptance and management of risk is fundamental
to the long-term success of the Group. Effective
communication and consultation are essential
throughout the risk management process to enhance
the understanding of risk identification, analysis and
evaluation and to accept them in an informed way. The
Board takes the following approach to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks:

()  To understand the nature and extent of risks
facing the Group;

(i)  To accept and manage within the business those
risks which its staff have the skills and expertise to
understand and leverage;

(i)  To assess and transfer or avoid those risks which
are beyond the Group’s appetite for risk; and

(iv) By consideration of materiality, to establish
the authority levels within the Group at which
decisions on acceptance and mitigation of these

risks are taken.
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Risk Management Framework B EEER
The diagram below summarises the Board’s TE*E%K%%%?J’“%UE@EEJ:@TLX&BH—F
complementary approach based on utilising a top- ERENE/EEZE

down plus a bottom-up process:

The Board
By

. Fully responsible for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems
2BREEAEENREEER AL AT

o Set strategic goals
HIE RS B AR
° Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems

R A 5 ) L B 1 e P B B R R AT AR

o Monitor the nature and extent of the key risks of the Group
SIEAEETZEABMEEREE

“Top-down” ) Provide references for the importance of risk management and risk management culture

rd AT PAREEEBIRAREE (R ESS]

Supervise, identify, evaluate
and mitigate risks at
enterprise level

BB | S R AT ARTE DR

2 e 0 [ - Financial
i Management
Management Audit Committee Department
\/ LEL == Tl i
e Design, implement and e  Assist the Board to monitor e  Assist the Audit Committee
monitor risk management the risk level, related risk to review the effectiveness of
and internal control systems management and the design the Group’s risk
Heh B RERREEIER and operation effectiveness management and internal
Fe BB 4T of the internal control system control systems
HENEE S B A KT 48 HEEZEE R AEER
e Assess the company-wide B R BR B IR K BRI R 4 AR E IR RN R RRH
risks and mitigation YRS 5T R AB AR %5
" e measures
Identify, assess and mitigate STER AT SR AT
risks in business units and I o
functional areas

Hopl SHE R AT AR FE TS BOL R
R AEERRBHY A%

“Bottom-up”

rl ikl

Operational Level

EEEE

o Identify, evaluate and mitigate business risks
B T R AT 4B TS R R

o Implement risk management procedures and internal control measures in various operational and

functional areas
AR EE AT R R EIREE AR
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The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of risk management and
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness,
particularly in respect of the controls of financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to
safeguard Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets. The system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. To continuously monitor the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems, the
Board reviews the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group at least
annually with the support from the Audit Committee.

Appropriate risk treatments are embedded in
daily operations. Once risk is identified, it will be
continuously monitored depending on its subsequent
risk rating and strength of controls to treat the risk.
All staff have the responsibility for the continuous
monitoring of risks and operation of controls within
their area of responsibility. In particular, close attention
has been paid to those risk areas indicating a strong
reliance on internal controls and processes to bring the
risks to an acceptable level.

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED EEfEEHMRAE
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As an ongoing process, the financial management
department of the Group randomly tests the internal
control and risk management systems annually,
and reports their works and findings to the Audit
Committee. In addition, despite the external auditors
of the Company do not express any opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control, they have
obtained an understanding of internal control relevant
to their audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. The external
auditors also communicate with the Audit Committee
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that they identify during their audit. Once any significant
deficiencies in internal control is identified and reported,
the Company will take timely remedial actions whenever
necessary.

The Group handled and disseminated inside
information in compliance with the Listing Rules and
the SFO. The Board identifies and determines whether
certain information needs to be disclosed as inside
information under the Listing Rules and the SFO with
the recommendation from the Senior Management and
the legal adviser of the Company. If an information is
determined as inside information, such information
will be disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable
by way of announcements unless the information falls
within any of the Safe Harbours as provided in the SFO.
Before the inside information is fully disclosed, such
information will keep strictly confidential and will only
be disclosed to, and handled by, those employees who
have a genuine need to know.
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The Group has not established an internal audit
department and its internal audit function is maintained
by the financial management department of the Group
with the supervision of the Audit Committee. During the
year, the Board, as supported by the Audit Committee,
has conducted a review on the effectiveness of all
material controls of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021. Based on the review from the Audit
Committee, the Board is satisfied that, based on the
information provided and on its own observation, the
present risk management and internal control systems
are effective and adequate for the nature and size of
the Group’s operations and business. There was no
significant control failings or weaknesses that have
been identified during the review.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company’s dividend policy enunciated at the time
of its initial public offering in 2009 is that it will pay
approximately 20-30% of the net profit attributable to
the Shareholders as dividend. However, the payment
and amount of any dividends in the future will be at
the discretion of the Board and will depend upon
the Company’s earnings, financial conditions, cash
requirements and availability, and other factors. There
is no assurance that the amount of dividend payment
or the timing of such payment, or whether the dividend
distribution will occur as intended.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KpME

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Puxing Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Puxing Energy Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 95 to 215,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”) together
with any ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the consolidated financial statements in the
Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional
judgement, was of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
The matter was addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on the matter.
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Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

SR RIS AT N

Refer to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial statements

BB AR G B IR E M 52 2(b)

The Key Audit Matter
FAREsI S8

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BHANSANAEEZER

At 31 December 2021, the Group had net current
liabilities of RMB336,610,000.
R_E_—F+ZA=+—H SEBRHEREZF
%8 A R 1£336,610,0007T ©

The directors evaluated the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern based on projections
of the Group’s profit and cash inflows from
operations and the ability of the Group to obtain or
renew bank loans and other financing facilities to
finance its continuing operations. As a result of their
assessment, the directors believe that the Group will
generate sufficient cash flows to meet its liabilities
as and when they fall due in the next twelve
months and concluded that there are no material
uncertainties related to events or conditions which,
individually or collectively, may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern.
EERBHEER RN REERERANTEIUR
EEERSHERRTERREMREEEUSE
RFECSRHESNENLGIGEERENFELE
FEN RIAMB - EERNAEEEARTELENN
REnsMEMERRRT_EAIHNEE I
MG EETEEN SN ERAHEERFEEE
FENBREARRBENSHHARRTERNERTETE
FSE

Our audit procedures to assess whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern included the
following:
RANBSAEFEENLGREFTERRERTEE
MNFENBERIEHEERNTESERNESE
BERREE BEUATRIE:

° walking through the business planning process
and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of management’s
internal controls over the assessment of the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern;

e HEBSFIREBITZTAARTLEEREY
EEEFECER T ENAMBETARE
HITREEMR ;

° comparing the future expected cash flows
in management’s cash flow forecast with
the Group’s business plan approved by the
directors;

e REERENRSARBTARPRRRERRER
EHSERKESHENEREEITILR ;

° comparing the available financing facilities and
arrangements with underlying documentation
and assessing the impact of any covenants
and other restrictive terms attached thereto;

s RERMBEEERZIHEBRAXHETILRK
ST Ay [ PR B9 1 1] 22 56 e L1 PR 5l 14 15 SR B 75 2R
NEE;
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The Key Audit Matter
AR EtE1E

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANMAEEZER

We identified the assessment of the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern as a key
audit matter because the Group has been in a net
current liabilities position since 2012 which has
increased the risk that the Group may not be able
to continue to operate as a going concern and
because the assessment of the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern is dependent upon
certain management assumptions and judgements,
in particular in relation to forecasting capacity tariff,
electricity volume tariff, annual power generation
volumes, natural gas prices and gross margins and
in assessing the ability of the Group to renew or
obtain new financing facilities upon expiry of the
existing financing facilities.
RMERTLEEESESENENITE R —BEH
RESAFE DHREERE _Z—_—_FE—HE
RERBEERR WBMT EEEIKRERETE
REEREBLSNEAR RANTHEEERFE
KRENBENTHERN EEENE THRERFIE L
HETCRAISEESE - EEEE - 2F5%EE XA
REERENE UKL EEENREERERES
PRSI ESHMEEENENSE AE -

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED

assessing the Group’s ability to renew or
refinance existing financing facilities upon
maturity by performing a retrospective review
of past renewal or roll-over history of financing
facilities in prior years, and inspecting loan
agreements and underlying documentation
for bank loans and other financing facilities
borrowed and repaid after year end;
FBEENE RN BEFEC MEEEERNE
MENTE U EERNIBEEREGER
HARFETESBEME 28t /1 MBRRER
BEBAREBEMZEBTERREMMEEFEZ
ER R KB

evaluating the key assumptions adopted
by management in the preparation of the
cash flow forecast, including capacity
tariff, electricity volume tariff, annual power
generation volumes, natural gas prices and
gross margins by comparing these key
assumptions with the historical performance of
the power plants, financial budgets approved
by the directors and terms of future electricity
supply as agreed with local governments;
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

BANEANAEEZER

° comparing future expected cash flows
with historical data, assessing whether
any variations were consistent with our
expectations based on our understanding of
the Group’s business and considering the
accuracy and reliability of past cash flow
forecasts made by management by comparing
them with the current year’s results; and

e RAREHREREHEELBIBETILER 5T
GEREAERFNEFH T ERMERHEEEE
Bz TERINTER UG EEEMEHNBE
HERERARSFNEEETHEBUZERE
M REI RN &

° assessing the sensitivities of the key
assumptions adopted by management in the
going concern assessment and considering
whether management had incorporated any
bias in the selection of such assumptions.

e M EEERFELKETLPFARANEIER
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all the information
included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
- consolidated financial statements that give a true and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
pbut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B BEN RS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit.
We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AZBEN RS

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Fung Ping Kwong.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

RO EmR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BF

Note
F 5

B A=+ —HIFE

2021 2020
—E-— _ECEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T PNELESET

Revenue U & 4 601,573

Operating expenses RERX

Fuel consumption IARLE FE (228,361) (215,307)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (88,097) (89,007)
Repairs and maintenance HEERREE (14,238) (10,576)
Personnel costs BTHAK 5(b) (37,484) (34,634)
Administrative expenses THRAX (21,322) (30,292)
Sales related taxes HEMRBRIE (6,055) (5,286)
Other operating expenses H& S (3,478) (3,605)
Profit from operations REET 202,538 191,533
Finance income MHEUWA 367 22,653
Finance expenses TR (53,782) (45,305)
Net finance costs B AR FER 5(a) (53,415) (22,652)
Other income Ha A 6 5,068

Profit before taxation PR ¥R Al E 154,191 171,352
Income tax FTigia 7 (50,399) (47,678)

Profit for the year

FAEF

103,792 123,674
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
ArEiEm

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE _EFE _—fFf A —HIFEE

2021 2020

—e-—& et ra

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
W PR ARETT

Attributable to: UTESGEM:
Equity shareholders of the Company KNI ERRER 103,825 124,190
Non-controlling interests JEERE (33) (516)
Profit for the year FREH 103,792 123,674
Earnings per share sREHN
Basic (RMB) HEAX (NRHTT) 10(a) 0.271
Diluted (RMB) 8 (AR T) 10(b) 0.271

AR R E
| B {2 A 5




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

RoBEmkEMEEERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE _E_—fFf _HZf—HIFFEE

2021 2020
—E-— “ETEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T BNEESET

Profit for the year FREF 103,792 123,674

Other comprehensive income for the EREM2EUA
year (after tax and reclassification ((RIEREH D IEFAE

adjustments): ®)
ltems that will not be reclassified to TEEMDEEERDN
profit or loss: U=
Exchange differences on translation MBRABHFRE
of financial statements B EE R = RE
of the Company (5,872) (3,336)
ltems that may be reclassified HEBEJEMDE
subsequently to profit or loss: EEmMWIER .
Exchange differences on translation MBI B R B/
of financial statements BTN E R EEE
of overseas subsidiaries (23]
Total comprehensive income FRAZEIIALELE
for the year 105,511 119,101
Attributable to: UT&FEM.:
Equity shareholders of the Company RNBEmIR R 105,544 119,617
Non-controlling interests PR (33) (516)
Total comprehensive income FRAZEWIALLE
for the year 105,511 119,101
The notes on pages 103 to 215 form part of these F103E215 BB ZEiRa I ERE
consolidated financial statements. B —EB 5D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR M BAKRR

At 31 December 2021
RZEZ—F+ZF=+—H

Note
B 5

2021

— T —

RMB’000
ARBTR

1,614,923
384
5,923
8,424

1,629,654

58,851
93,755
76,087

Non-current assets JERENEE

Property, plant and equipment Y -BEREE 11
Intangible assets mVEE 12
Deferred tax assets FERIBE E 24(b)
Other non-current asset HMIERBEE 13
Current assets RHEE

Inventories 78 14
Trade and other receivables fEUNE 5 KR EMRia 16
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 17
Current liabilities REAE

Shareholder’s loan REBEEMNR 18
Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19
Consideration payable FEHLE 20
Trade and other payables FESE 5 K E Mg 21
Lease liabilities HE&®E Z%
Current taxation BPEAFR 1B 24(a)

228,693

93,138
286,438
106,226

49,872

247

29,382

565,303

2020

—v—vﬁi

RMB’000

ARBTT

1,693,926
711
2,843

1,697,480

58,960
48,619
131,964

239,543

274,440
101,181
53,821
2,000
22,339

453,781

(214,238)

(336,610)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AR B AK AR

) At 31 December 2021
R-E-—F+-A=1—4H

2021 2020

—T-—F gk
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
GE AEBTrx BENCLRwn

Non-current liabilities ErHaE
Shareholder’s loan [ER=E 18 - 91,404
Interest-bearing borrowings HEES 19 431,000 500,750
Consideration payable FE LB 20 101,819 208,281
Lease liabilities HEERE 22 79 3,788
Deferred revenue EEUR ZR 23 11,494 11,371
Deferred tax liabilities IRIIERIBEEE 24(b) 29,799 16,433
574,191 832,027
NET ASSETS BEZE 718,853 651,215
CAPITAL AND RESERVES TR
Share capital B 7 25(b) 40,149 40,149
Reserves Ei] 678,717 611,051

Total equity attributable to equity AATIRELSBHE L

shareholders of the Company 4 2% 718.866 651 200
Non-controlling interests JEIERR (13) 15
TOTAL EQUITY i 718,853 651,215
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of REEEGN _T__F-_A=-1+H#LERE
directors on 30 March 2022. HEEE o

XU Anliang WEI Junyong
#HRER Was
Director Director
EFE 2
The notes on pages 103 to 215 form part of these F103E215EN MR ZELR M BRR
consolidated financial statements. B —EB 5D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
rEEmEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E-_—Ff _HA=+—HIFE

Attrioutable to equity shareholders of the Company

FATEERERE
Statutory Non-
Share Share Capttal Merger surplus Translation Retained controling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity
o ‘ EERE ) 2R
e RiaE ExfE AHEE G EREE REBER It B s
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i3 AEETR  ARETR ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  AR¥TR  AR¥Tn  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn
Balance at 1 January 2020 gt Ju 43
—-B-RfEE 40,149 65,640 24,189 606,883 84,512 (35,237) 200,141 986,277 531 986,808
Changes in equity for 2020 “ICTERELY
Profit for the year ERii) = = - - - - 124,190 124,190 (516) 123,674
Other comprehensive income 2 ERA - - - - - 4,573) - (4,573) - (4573
Total comprenensive income 2ERALE - - - - - (4573 124,190 119617 (516) 119,101
Dividends approved and paid inrespect ~ B ERIENEERS
of previous year 25(d)i) - (16,537) - - - - - (16,537) - (16,537)
Dividends distribution to the then HEM”EWW‘ AR
parent company of Quzhou Puxing 7 (TENER) £5H
Gas Turbing Thermal Power Co,, Ltd.  BARNERE
(Quzhou Power Plant’) - - - - - - (82,306) (82,306) - (82,306)
Appropriation to reserves BERE 25(c)() - - - - 12211 = (12,211) = = =
Acquisition of Quzhou Power Plant WEARES THENEE
under common control - - - (356,851) - - - (355,851) - (355,851)

Balance at 31 December 2020 it k- 3
+ZA=t+-BNER 40,149 49,103 24,189 251,082 96,723 (39,810) 229814 651,200 15 651,215

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
FRARTRREL

Statutory Non-
Share Share Capital Merger surplus  Translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Subtotal interests equity

. . RS ‘ 2R
ke  BOEE  EAEE ARG fE  EREE  REEM it fEa g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR ARBTR ARBTR ABBTR AEBBTm AEBBTm AEBTm AEBBTm AEBBTm ABRBTR

Balance at 1 January 2021 RZB=-F
—-R-BMEs 40,149 49,103 24,189 251,032 96,723 (39,810) 229,814 651,200 651,215
Changes in equity for 2021 :i::ﬁﬁﬁ!ﬂj

Profit for the year ERiafl - 103,825 103,825 103,792
Other comprehensive income A2 ERA 1,719 - 1,719 - 1,79

Total comprehensive income 2EUARE 1,719 103,825 105,544 105,511

Acquisition of additional equity interests  WEEMBARNEMRE
in a subsidiary ) = (5) -
Dividends approved and paid inrespect  BHEREMNEERE

(37,873) 5 - (37.873) (37873)
- 12,390 (12,390) - -

40,149 11,230 24,189 251,027 109,113 (38,091) 321,249 718,866 718,853

e
- .
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n\7r\ Eﬁ.@ )ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE T—FFZA=+—HIFE

2021 2020

—Eg=-— TECEF

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
eI ARE T PNEL S

Cash flows from operating activities &EE;EEIFRFIRE NS

Profit for the year FEREF 103,792 123,674

Adjustments for: RB/EIFE .
Depreciation of owned property, BEME -BE&
plant and equipment RIBITE 5(c) 84,124 84,692
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE
— land use rights — T fE A 5(c) 1,698 1,698
— other properties —H 5(c) 1,593 2,006
Amortisation of intangible assets mLEE#E 5(c) 682 611
Net finance costs 2 i) D R 5(a) 53,415 22,652
Net loss on disposal of property, BEEYME -KE
plant and equipment KB R 1R 35 5(c) 1,521 2,790
Tax expense MBS 7(a) 50,399 47,678
297,224
Changes in working capital: SEETEE .
Decrease in inventories EFEERD 109 125
(Increase)/decrease in trade FENE 5 Kk HEMFRIE
and other receivables (g hn) (44,675)
Increase in other non-current asset HMIEmEN = EIL 0 (8,424)
Increase in trade and other payables BB 5 R EMIE
and deferred revenue LU 305 SIE U 2 12 7][1 7,139
Cash generated from RESEEFRIERE
operating activities 251,373
Interest paid BENFE (49,228)
Income taxes paid ENER (33,070)
Net cash generated from R SEEI PRSI I RaE
operating activities 169,075 181,524
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
n‘7r\ Eﬁ,@ )ILE%

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_E-_—Ff _HA=+—HIFE

2021 2020

—e-—g il rs

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
izt NS AT

Cash flows from investing activities REZEIFIBFRENRE

Interest received =2 e, 367 721
Payment for purchase of property, BEME BEK

plant and equipment BN (17,580) (15,822)
Payment for purchase of intangible EEETEEEND

assets (355) -

Net cash used in investing activities R E;EBIFAAREFLE (17,568) (15,101)

Cash flows from financing activities FiZE ;EEIFFBIRERE

Capital element of lease rentals paid ENHEERENERRNG  17() (2,011) (2,437)
Proceeds from interest-bearing S EEEFREEIE

borrowings 17(b) 524,000 410,000
Repayment of interest-bearing EBExtEEs

borrowings 17(b) (581,500) (354,550)
Dividends paid to equity shareholders ENAAEERKREN

of the Company 2 25(d)(ii) (37,873) (16,537)
Dividends paid to the then parent ENEMNERE D

company of Quzhou Power Plant FRENEKE (82,306)
Payment for acquisition of Quzhou FLU AR H R T AY

Power Plant under common control A ENEN 17(b) (110,000) (50,000)
Net cash used in financing activities RE EBIFAAREFEE (207,384) (95,830)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERFEZEY

and cash equivalents GRL) 18 hini$Ea (55,877) 70,593
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BNHRER

at 1 January REEEY 131,964 61,371
Cash and cash equivalents R+ZA=+—HNRE

at 31 December RBAEEE N 17(a) 131,964
The notes on pages 103 to 215 form part of these F103E216E B % S & M IRER
consolidated financial statements. H—E e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Puxing Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law,
Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) of the Cayman Islands. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 10 July 2009. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”) are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), which collective term includes all
applicable individual International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs), International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). Significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group
are disclosed below.

mE M HwRRM

BEERRFREM

HEREBARAR ((KAF) RZTE
NENBNBERESEERERNEES
ERB22ERFE (—HR—FB =R
AR IR ERIES]) SR AR R
BERRAB -XRABDRNMN-ZBZNEL
E—FEIY_*%H?A*%FEEBE@T (T

RPM)) ERET AR REMBAF
(e TREH) NIEXHRER K
EREEERK-

BAGTHE

(a) &FEH
ZEFERRT IR BERE 5T £
AEEg (HEZrEAEES))
FTiafme 2B EEETHRES
R (TERMBREER > B
FTE 8 B < 8 7 B fR B 7% 3k & 2
B~ BB et ZER (TEE gt
B &) hEB QBRI
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BB EE X  AREFRMIE
BETERE PXINE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'

CLECE eSS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 2(e) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they
are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these
financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2021 comprise the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statements is the
historical cost basis.

At 31 December 2021, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB336,610,000 (31
December 2020: RMB214,238,000). In view
of this circumstance, the directors of the
Company (the “Directors”) have given careful
conS|derat|on to the future I|qU|d|ty and

LI
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(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of preparation of the financial
statements (Continued)

Based on the future projecton of the
Group’s profit and cash inflows from
operations, the unused credit facilities as
at 31 December 2021 of RMB309 million
granted by Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd.
(“Wanxiang Finance”), a fellow subsidiary of
the Company, and the ability of the Group
to obtain or renew bank loans and other
financing facilities from related parties,
including Wanxiang Finance, the Directors
believe that the Group will generate sufficient
cash flows to meet its liabilities as and when
they fall due in the next twelve months.
Accordingly, the Directors consider that
there are no material uncertainties related
to events or conditions which, individually
or collectively, may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern
basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”) which is the functional
currency of the Group’s subsidiaries located
in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). All financial information presented
in RMB has been rounded to the nearest
thousands, except when otherwise indicated.
The functional currency of the Company and
its subsidiaries in Hong Kong is Hong Kong
dollar (“HKS$").

l\‘7r\
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SETHE (&
(Continued)
(d) Use of judgements and estimates (d) & A I I8 R (ki 51

106

The preparation of the financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

In applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made judgements about
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are
as follows:

(i)

(i)

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value.

Management reviews annually the
useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any. The depreciation expense
for future periods is adjusted if there
are significant changes from previous
estimates.

Impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group tests whether property, plant
and equipment suffered any impairment
whenever an impairment indication
exists. In accordance with note 2(l)
(i), an impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. It is reasonably
possible, based on existing knowledge,
that outcomes within the next
financial period that are different from
assumptions could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im e RS i R MY R

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Use of judgements and estimates
(Continued)

(iii) Recognition of deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets in respect of
unused tax losses and deductible
temporary differences are recognised
and measured based on the expected
manner of realisation or settlement
of the carrying amount of the
assets, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period. In determining
the carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of
assumptions relating to the operating
environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgment exercised
by the directors.

(e) Changes in accounting policies

The Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB
to these financial statements for the current
accounting period:

e  Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest rate
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

n‘7r\
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBEAGFHEEK #E
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) EHREE (&
(Continued)
Other than the amendment to IFRS 16, the PREIPR T RS ERE 16515 5]

Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period. Impacts of
the adoption of the amended IFRSs are
discussed below:

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS
7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, Interest rate
benchmark reform — phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs
from (i) accounting for changes in the basis
for determining contractual cash flows
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of financial assets, financial liabilities and BHHEENER . ((FRESME
lease liabilities as modifications, and (i) E-THaErIEEEeNRE
discontinuing hedge accounting when an ﬁﬁ@]%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬁ%f@ﬂ TR E
interest rate benchmark is replaced by an B R(iNVERIEHEPET L ZEE

alternative benchmark rate as a result of
the reform of interbank offered rates (‘IBOR
reform”). The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as
the Group does not have contracts that are
indexed to benchmark interest rates which
are subject to the IBOR reform.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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110

Amendment to IFRS 16, Covid-19-
related rent concessions beyond 30
June 2021 (“2021 amendment”)

The Group previously applied the practical
expedient in IFRS 16 such that as lessee
it was not required to assess whether
rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
were lease modifications, if the eligibility
conditions are met. One of these conditions
requires the reduction in lease payments
affect only payments originally due on or
before a specified time limit. The 2021
amendment extends this time limit from
30 June 2021 to 30 June 2022.

The Group has early adopted the 2021
amendment in this financial year and there
is no impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 SETHE (&
(Continued)
(e) Changes in accounting policies (e) EBEEREE &)
(Continued)

B RS ERF167155T
Z —FE-—FENA=1+HZ#E
8920197 X 1% % %5 15 F 8 £ &t
(I —F&:T4))

FEBLAERBERMBREE
AlE16sE R TR E S A EIE
ERABA ERNEEREME R
ERIEE20198RFEREIE
EREyMNEERACSSBEE
E5] - HR—IRIR 2 REE I
BB EFEEREEMARAN
Z R AR RIG (I RER s — T — —
FEIJAFILERRE - - —F
ANRA=ZTHERE-ZF-FN
B=+H-

XEFBERAMBFERERN
R —FEBITA ZETRYH
rXEBBEE-_TE-_—F+=A
=S+t HEFENGESHMBRER
N7 f8E 22 28 o

A= |




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Business combination under common
control

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement
dated 6 May 2020 entered into between
Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power
Co., Ltd. (“Deneng Power Plant”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited
(“Shanghai Puxing”), the then intermediate
parent company of the Company, (the “Share
Purchase Agreement”), Deneng Power
Plant acquired 100% equity interests in
Quzhou Power Plant from Shanghai Puxing
(the “Acquisition”) at a final consideration
of RMB355.85 million (the “Final
Consideration”).

The Acquisition was approved by the
shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting held on
30 July 2020, and was then completed on
30 September 2020.

Since the Company and Quzhou Power
Plant are controlled by Shanghai Puxing both
before and after the business combination,
and control is not transitory, the Acquisition
is dealt with as business combination under
common control.

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
combining entities or businesses in which
the common control combination occurs as
if they had been combined from the date
when the combining entities or businesses
first came under the control of the controlling

party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'

CLECE eSS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Business combination under common
control (Continued)

The assets and liabilities of the combining
entities or businesses are combined at the
carrying amounts previously recognised
in the respective controlling shareholder’s
financial statements. The consolidated
statement of profit or loss includes the
results of each of the combining entities or
businesses from the earliest date presented
or since the date when combining entities
or businesses first came under common
control, where this is a shorter period,
regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the combined
financial statements are presented as
if the entities or businesses had been
combined at the previous financial year end
presented or when they first came under
common control, whichever is later. The
adjustment to eliminate the share capital
of entities combined and investment cost
has been recorded as merger reserve in the
consolidated financial statements.

Transaction costs, including professional
‘ -«cqsts of furnishing
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEARGHEE @
(Continued)

(9) MEBARKRIFERES

(g) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power,
only substantive rights (held by the Group
and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent
that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests
either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BKRIGHEEK #E
(Continued)

(9) MIBABRKRIEERRER (&)

(g) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

114

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and
the equity shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and
non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a
subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal
- of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

(h)

interests (Continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2(1)(ii)).

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess
is recognised immediately in profit or loss as
a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of
CGU, that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination and is tested
annually for impairment (see note 2(l)(ii)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment

(i)

(ii)

Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost, which includes
capitalised borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses (see
note 2(I)(ii)).

If significant parts of an item of
property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item
of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only if it is probable that the future
economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7r\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBEAGFHEEK #E
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment (i) VE-BERRE Z
(Continued)
(iii) Depreciation (i) #rE
Depreciation is calculated to write off TERBEGERE M A
the cost of items of property, plant i FE EHAMEE ) 2 ~ TR S R 3R

and equipment less their estimated
residual values using the straight-
line basis method over their estimated
useful lives, and is generally recognised
in profit or loss. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the
lease term and their useful lives unless
it is reasonably certain that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the
lease term.

The estimated useful lives of significant
items of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

Buildings and plants 30 years
Major generator 25 — 30 years
equipment

Other machineries 5 — 32 years
Motor vehicles, furniture, 5 — 10 years
fixtures, equipment

and others

Right-of-use assets Depreciated
including land use over the
rights shorter of the

unexpired
lease term or
the estimated
useful lives of
the assets

Depreciation methods, useful lives
and residual values are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
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2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEEER ()

(Continued)

(i) Intangible assets () BEEE
Intangible assets that are acquired by the KEBBANEFLEEZN AR
Group are stated at cost less accumulated Rty W ERERER
amortisation (where the estimated useful life fR) B E R 8 (R sE2()i) 7Y
is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2(I) iR o
(ii)).
Amortisation of intangible assets with finite AFERATFHERNEBELEE#H
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a REENGHAIERAFHRMUE
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated L BB @m0k N7 A B FH
useful lives. The following intangible assets ERNEFEEEBHIHERH
with finite useful lives are amortised from AR ETEHE A EMS U ERE
the date they are available for use and their HWT -
estimated useful lives are as follows:
Pollutant emission rights 5 years BES 1 5%
Software 5 - 10 years E/4ES 5-104F
Both the period and method of amortisation BN E A EEIRNEEETSE
are reviewed annually. B o

(k) Leased assets (k) HEEE

At inception of a contract, the Group
assesses whether the contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a
perlod of t|me in exchange for consideration.

onveyed where the customer

B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease
component(s) and non-lease component(s),
the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the
Group recognises a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability, except for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less
and leases of low-value assets which, for
the Group are primarily laptops and office
furniture. When the Group enters into a lease
in respect of a low-value asset, the Group
decides whether to capitalise the lease on
a lease-by-lease basis. The lease payments
associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on
a systematic basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEKRIEHEEK @)
(Continued)

(k) HEEE @

(k) Leased assets (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease
liability is initially recognised at the present
value of the lease payments payable over
the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial
recognition, the lease liability is measured
at amortised cost and interest expense
is calculated using the effective interest
method. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or rate are not included
in the measurement of the lease liability and
hence are charged to profit or loss in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a
lease is capitalised is initially measured at
cost, which comprises the initial amount of
the lease liability plus any lease payments
made at or before the commencement
date, and any initial direct costs incurred.
Where applicable, the cost of the right-
of-use assets also includes an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying

S i - which it is located,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments
arising from a change in an index or rate, or
there is a change in the Group’s estimate
of the amount expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee, or there
is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option. When the lease liability
is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in
profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when
there is a change in the scope of a lease
or the consideration for a lease that is not
originally provided for in the lease contract
(“lease modification”) that is not accounted
for as a separate lease. In this case the
lease liability is remeasured based on the
revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification. The only exceptions are
rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and met the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of IFRS 16 Leases. In such cases, the
Group has taken advantage of the practical
expedient not to assess whether the rent
concessions are lease modifications, and
recognised the change in consideration as
negative variable lease payments in profit
or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers the rent concessions
occurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

EAREFER @

(k) HEEE @
(EBEARBA (B)

AEBRIATEREDEEERD
ERAREEZIN ME-BER
RECUREEEERGEMT

(k) Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

The Group presents right-of-use assets that
do not meet the definition of investment
property in ‘property, plant and equipment’

and presents lease liabilities separately in the RREFPEBET
consolidated statement of financial position.
() Credit losses and impairment of ) EEHEEREERE
assets
(i) Credit losses from financial () EHBITRAZIEEEHE
instruments

AEBT T SBRNEHRE
518 ((FAEEER)) m®

The Group recognises a loss allowance
for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the

following items: REIEEE

- financial assets measured at - RREBHEHNASSENEH
amortised cost (including cash BEE (BEREMRESE
and cash equivalents, trade and BY -BWES KEM
other receivables); FIB) ;

NATEFENHMEME
ENAZRNBHEEEHIR

Other financial assets measured at
fair value are not subject to the ECL

122

bability-weighted

ses. Credit losses

Al 1e

assessment. BYETAd o

Measurement of ECLs JEHAEEE IR E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The expected cash shortfalls are
discounted using the following discount
rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

- fixed-rate financial assets and
trade and other receivables:
effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets:
current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group
takes into account reasonable and
supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAEIHHEE ®#®
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEFEEREERE @)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () EHIAZIEEE]E (&)

instruments (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued) JEHR= ER51E5tE (2

ECLs are measured on either of the FRHEEBEEEN THHEAF

following bases: —EEES

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses — 12@BFEHEERIE .
that are expected to result from FEHNEREHBAE12@E
possible default events within BATEEENENSE
the 12 months after the reporting HMEHRNEE ; &
date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses — EEEFEEHANTEHREE
that are expected to result from B8 EHNERBTES
all possible default events over EEEBEEANERRE
the expected lives of the items to TERRF R AP A Bl A 22
which the ECL model applies. EHNENEHMERW

B8

Loss allowances for trade receivables FEWE ZRIEM R 1B E —

are always measured at an amount BILEERNEEEFEERAN

equal to lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these FEHREEGRENTETE2 &

financial assets are estimated using a EERMEENTEREESIE

provision matrix based on the Group’s LAMBERASEEBEREE

historical credit loss experience, BIEARNEEEEETHE

adjusted for factors that are specific BN BREHRAEHEAN

to the debtors and an assessment of (ENIFSESYOSER=Y-TP &P
: “and forecast general BREGERK I (GEETH
e - !? 0% ‘-.. .\ = gp.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit
risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the
risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting
date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers
that a default event occurs when the
financial asset is 60 days past due.
The Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information
is taken into account when assessing
whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- failure to make payments of
principal or interest on their
contractually due dates;

- an actual or expected significant
deterioration in a financial
instrument’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

nin
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- j- ?‘2 $E % M_.I- J-I

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BKRIGHEEK #E
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEFEREERE &)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () EHMIAZIEEEHE &)
instruments (Continueqd)
Significant increases in credit risk EERMEEEm &)
(Continued)
- an actual or expected significant - BEBANRKRESEEBR
deterioration in the operating HFEAREESRILE &

results of the debtor; and

- existing or forecast changes in the — B -mH KB ERE
technological, market, economic IRIE K B Al sk TR HA & &)
or legal environment that have HEBABITHHEAE
a significant adverse effect on BEHENENBEKRT
the debtor’s ability to meet its M Eo

obligation to the Group.

Depending on the nature of the BRARERMTIANMEE 5
financial instruments, the assessment ERREEL MBI GTLZE
of a significant increase in credit risk &R B2 HEEE AT o
is performed on either an individual T h AL LR EEET &M
basis or a collective basis. When the T HAZERNEE &R E
assessment is performed on a collective (a0 %8 BA R R K (5 B B B 51
basis, the financial instruments are ) TP

grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics, such as past due status
and credit risk ratings.

BRHEEBEEREHREEH
ET E%ﬁzuﬁﬂ%ﬁmﬁl

B
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continueq)

Significant increases in credit risk
(Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest
income

Interest income recognised in
accordance with note 2(u)(v) is
calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless
the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost
(i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group
assesses whether a financial asset
is credit-impaired. A financial asset
is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

17177 N e |

2 EBERGFER®

I EEGHEKREEREE
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FEFEIRA BB E

R M EE2(u) (V) FESB B FI B I
ALREBETMEEZBIRE
BB BFEZEMEED
REGRE FLBRT F
BBATREEREEZ#
5 Y A (B 48 AR [ (5 6L 65 15 185
) 58 o

RERSBH AEEFEE
MEERCHREGRE-E
B -—HRUNZHENSTHEE
HEtREKBEREFFAANE
ENEHR THMEERRE
EimfE-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 —Z”-—FHFERS

127



128

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE M HAR MR

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAEIHHEE ®#®
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEFEREERE &)
assets (Continued)
(i) Credit losses from financial () EHBITRAZIEEEE B
instruments (Continueqd)
Significant increases in credit risk EERMEEEm &
(Continued)
Basis of calculation of interest FTEFEMAEE (B)
income (Continued)
Evidence that a financial asset is THMEELREERENS
credit-impaired includes the following BEENTIERREMS
observable events:
- significant financial difficulties of — EBBEABEAMBRE;

the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or past due event;

- it becoming probable that the
borrower will enter into bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— EBXHmEXx s E
=S

- BEATERENET
HP #5848 ;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Credit losses and impairment of
assets (Continued)

()

Credit losses from financial
instruments (Continued)

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is written off (either partially or
in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is
generally the case when the Group
determines that the debtor does not
have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write-
off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset
that was previously written off are
recognised as a reversal of impairment
in profit or loss in the period in which
the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7r j- %‘2 $E 15—% M_.I- J-I

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARGHHE &
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEFEREERE &)
assets (Continued)
(i) Impairment of other non-current (i) BiEneEERE
assets
Internal and external sources of AEBERSREPRTFR
information are reviewed at the end 59 3R K S BB E L AR R 0 LARE
of each reporting period to identify ETINEERTRE (BMERK
indications that the following assets 4N o BB AR R EE 18
may be impaired or, except in the EETFTEEEHEL D !

case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment, — ME-BERRH B
including right-of-use assets; CREEE;

- intangible assets; and - EBEBE; R

- investments in subsidiaries in the — ZARBUBRRARET
Company’s statement of financial R B ABINRE -
position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s HMEEEABEBESR  BEH

recoverable amount is estimated. In STEENTUEIEEE LI

addition, for goodwill, the recoverable MEEMS et FEE

amount is estimated annually whether MRERR MEsFEMETHE

BILEIEACE

or not there is any indication_of

LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7r\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBEAGFHEEK #E
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEBEREERE @)

assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair value
less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to
the asset. Where an asset does
not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash
inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). A portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate
asset (for example, head office
building) is allocated to an
individual cash-generating unit if
the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis,
or to the smallest group of cash-
generating units if otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

132

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEAEIHHEE ®#®
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEFEREERE &)

assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

(i) RFREEERE (&)

- Recognition of impairment —  HESRERSE
losses
An impairment loss is recognised HEEXHEHMBREE

in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the
cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the
cash-generating unit (or group
of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (or group of
units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable) or value in
use (if determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7r\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 HBEAGFHEEK #E
(Continued)
() Credit losses and impairment of () EEBEREERE @)

assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other non-current
assets (Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable

(i) RFEwEEERE ()

—  REBREL
MEEBEUIINEEM
?’H%M#ETW@

TENGEFHRANE
@ ERMBAEBEERER T
B, EmENRES

amount. An impairment loss BAREREE-

in respect of goodwill is not

reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss BORERBUTE

is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss
in the year in which the reversals
are recognised.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34,
Interim financial reporting, in respect
of the first six months of the financial

year.

At the end of the interim period,

the Group applies the same impairment
testing, recognition, and reversal criteria
as it would at the end of the financial

year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'

CLECE eSS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Inventories

(n)

Inventories include materials for repairs and
maintenance and spare parts, and are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Inventories are initially recorded at cost and
are charged to operating expenses when
used, or capitalised to property, plant and
equipment when installed, as appropriate,
using weighted average cost basis. Cost of
inventories includes costs of purchase and
transportation costs. Provision for inventory
obsolescence is determined by the excess of
cost over net realisable value.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the
Group has an unconditional right to
receive consideration. A right to receive
consideration is unconditional if only the
passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are initially
measured at their transaction price. Trade
receivables that contain a significant
flnancmg component and other receivables

| ur d' at falr value plus

LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions,
and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity
at acquisition. Cash and cash equivalents are
assessed for ECLs in accordance with the
policy set out in note 2(l)(i).

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value. Subsequent to initial
recognition, trade and other payables are
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at invoice amounts.

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan

Interest-bearing borrowings and
shareholder’s loan are measured initially at
fair value less transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings and shareholder’s loan are stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy for borrowing costs (see note 2(x)).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'

CLECE eSS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r)

(s)

Short-term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pay fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for the statutory defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as
an expense in profit or loss when they are
due.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are

LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s) Income tax (Continued)

()

(i)

Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax
payable or receivable on the taxable
income or loss for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or
receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax payable or
receivable is the best estimate of the
tax amount expected to be paid or
received that reflects uncertainty related
to income taxes, if any. It is measured
using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date. Current
tax also includes any tax arising from
dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise
from deductible and taxable temporary
differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also
arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BKRIGHEEK #E
(Continued)

(s) FRiGHR (&)
(i) BERIE (&)

(s) Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued)

138

Apart from certain limited exceptions,
all deferred tax liabilities, and all
deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the
asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support
the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary
difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward.

The same criteria are adopted when
determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and
credlts that is, those differences are
ake | ; relate to the
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR RN

n‘7r\
2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BARGHHE @#E
(Continued)
(s) Income tax (Continued) (s) Frig# &)
(i) Deferred tax (Continued) (ii) BEIEFRIE (42)
The limited exceptions to recognition BERMBEEEREERIN

of deferred tax assets and liabilities
are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible
for tax purposes, the initial recognition
of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary
differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the
case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and
it is probable that the differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future, or
in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax
asset is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed
to the extent that it becomes probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise
from the distribution of dividends are
recognised when the liability to pay the
related dividends is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- j- ?‘2 $E 13—% M_.I- J-I

are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax
liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the
Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARGHHE &
(Continued)
(s) Income tax (Continued) (s) EREMR (&)
(ii) Deferred tax (Continued) (i) BEERIE (&)
Current tax balances and deferred tax BRI IB A R IR R IE 45
balances, and movements therein, BFRRESEHEEEY > LA

TR EH o BIHAM IR & 7 S B AA
MIBEE > UBIEERIAE E
BUREMBEERREEAR
BN AEEE S ARAITE
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the following additional conditions are
met:

— in the case of current tax assets — BN EEERE
and liabilities, the Company or B ARABHKEERE
the Group intends either to settle SR FREEELE &
on a net basis, or to realise ERNERZEENBE

the asset and settle the liability ZEE; o
simultaneously; or
— in the case of deferred tax assets - WBECEREBEBEEKS

B ZEERBERRA

and liabilities, if they relate to

income taxes levied by the same MERBEELUTE
taxation authority on either: R—IERWBNFERE
B8 .

- the same taxable entity; or — HEEERRER,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

t)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group
has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure
expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Where some or all of the expenditure
required to settle a provision is expected to
be reimbursed by another party, a separate
asset is recognised for any expected
reimbursement that would be virtually
certain. The amount recognised for the
reimbursement is limited to the carrying
amount of the provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BKRIGHEEK #E
(Continued)

(u) WmBKRHEMUEA

(u) Revenue and other income

142

Income is classified by the Group as revenue
when it arises from the sales of goods or the
provision of services in the ordinary course of
the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over
a product or service is transferred to the
customer, at the amount of promised
consideration to which the Group is
expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any
trade discounts.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the customer for more
than 12 months, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction with the customer, and interest
income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which
provides a significant financing benefit to
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Further details of the Group’s revenue and
other income recognition policies are as
follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Revenue from sales of electricity

Revenue from sales of electricity is
recognised upon the transmission
of electric power to the power grid
companies, as determined based
on the volume of electric power
transmitted and the applicable fixed
tariff rates agreed with the respective
electric power grid companies
periodically.

Capacity tariff revenue

Capacity tariff revenue is recognised on
a time-apportioned basis by reference
to the installed production capacity of
individual power plants and the relevant
capacity tariff rates.

Revenue from sales of heat

Revenue from sales of heat is
recognised upon the transmission of
heat to the third party customers, as
determined based on the volume of
heat transmitted and the applicable
unit price agreed with the respective
customers periodically.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'

CLECE eSS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(iv) Revenue from provision of

v)

operation and maintenance
services

Revenue from provision of operation
and maintenance services is recognised
overtime, using an input method to
measure progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service, because the
customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the
Group. Revenue is recognised on a
straight-line basis because the Group’s
inputs are expended evenly throughout
the performance period.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured
at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of
the asset. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Revenue and other income (Continued)

(v)

(vi) Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the consolidated statement of
financial position initially when there is
reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised as
income in profit or loss on a systematic
basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost
of an asset are initially recognised as
deferred revenue at fair value and then
recognised in profit or loss as other
income on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the
reporting period. Exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. The transaction date is the
date on which the Group initially recognises
such non-monetary assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘7|'

CLECE eSS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(w)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of foreign operations are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into RMB at the closing foreign
exchange rates at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
cumulative amount of the exchange
differences relating to that foreign operation
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(x)

(v)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of a qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset is being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale
are interrupted or complete.

Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over
the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the
Group; or

(i) is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

l\‘7r\

2 EKXEG

(x)

(v)

Rk eSS

TR (#

BE M

ERIRBE -BEENEEEE
(BEEHEERKE D EERLE
DFRRRSHEZEE) 2 &
ERTERCERZEEREZ
— 80 - HfE B a1 E E 8
B3z

EELTEERXBEEREURK
FETEHREEFRERRIY
ENVBETER RESMAEF
REMEENB DAL - ZSHEART
REEMFRERBNLENER
BAOVETFRENTREEY
PR IEREE A EM A -

BAER

@ —BAITHHEZHBES
DU 1% 14 BD 48R 2% 7 £ [ B9 ]
B

() IEFINEFEGREER;

(il HEAEBBEEAEE;
54

(il AEAEEBHILEEEZA
BENETEEEAS-

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

B —FEERSE




148

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(o)

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

(2)

Related parties (Continued)
(b)  (Continued)

(vii) The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group or
to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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CLECE eSS

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

A number of the Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group uses observable market data
as far as possible. Fair values are categorised
into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows:

o Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;

o Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included in Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that

are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3

4

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Trade and other receivables and trade
and other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective
fair values due to the short maturities of
these instruments.

Interest-bearing borrowings,
consideration payable, shareholder’s
loan and lease liabilities

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings, consideration payable,
shareholder’s loan and lease liabilities
approximate their fair values based on the
borrowing rates currently available for bank
loans with similar terms and maturity.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

Revenue

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Revenue comprises volume tariff revenue,
capacity tariff revenue, revenue from sales of
heat and revenue from provision of operation
and maintenance services.

- Volume tariff revenue represents
the sale of electricity to power grid
companies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

152

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WHERDPBRE @)
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (&)
-  Capacity tariff revenue represents RENIBSMWEBRNZZ
a subsidy income from power grid —RFERNBBEHNEREE

companies, following a reduction in
the annual planned power generation
volume of the Group’s power plants for
supply to the power grid companies
and changes in the electricity tariff
policies applicable to the Group
since 2015, pursuant to the “Notice
Regarding the Trial Implementation
of Dual Tariff for Natural Gas Power
Generating Units in Zhejiang Province”
issued by Zhejiang Provincial Price
Bureau in June 2015.

Revenue from sales of heat represents
the sale of heat to corporate entities.

Revenue from operation and
maintenance services represents the
provision of operation and maintenance
services to corporate entities.

Volume tariff revenue and revenue from sales
of heat are recognised upon the transfer of
products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
m7|'\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WmkDEHRS @
(Continued)
(a) Revenue (Continued) (a) Wz (&)
(i) Disaggregation of revenue () WmmiE
Disaggregation of revenue from BRFIFEE@MOBENEREYN
contracts with customers by major WmanT -

products is as follows:

2021 2020
SEC—F ot

GUUSGO  RMB'000
ARERTR NS

Revenue from contracts B PR TR & #E R F 155
with customers within HEANNEER SIS

the scope of IFRS 15

Disaggregated by major products: & FEE @948 !

Electricity: B
Volume tariff revenue BEEEEWA 188,802 187,344
Capacity tariff revenue REBEWA 357,849
546,651 545,193
Heat: =y
Revenue from sales of heat HE WA 53,650
Service: RT -
Revenue from provision IRHESE RAEERT
of operation and A
maintenance services 1,272

601,573
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RS E R

n\7|'

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING
(Continued)

(@) Revenue (Continued)

(b)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue
(Continued)

The Group’s customer base is
concentrated and includes only one
customer with whom transactions
have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenues. In 2021, volume tariff revenue
and capacity tariff revenue from this
customer (including its subsidiaries)
amounted to RMB546,651,000
(2020: RMB545,193,000). Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising
from this customer are set out in note
26(a).

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have

identified five operating segments, which are

Zhejlang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas

the five power plants, namely:

Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal
Power Co., Ltd.* (“Anji Power Plant”);

Deneng Power Plant;

Ltd ¥ “Jlng Xing Power

LI
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4 WmkDEBKRS @)

(a) Wz (&)

(b)

(i)

Wk 7748 ()

AEBHNERERED X
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BERRE—H - R_T_—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

4 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 WEkDEHHE &)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) REPIHS &

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these five operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to
a single reportable segment of the Group,
power segment, for financial reporting
purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes,
the type or class of customers and the
regulatory environment. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

All of the Group’s revenue is derived from the
volume tariff revenue, capacity tariff revenue,
revenue from sales of heat and revenue from
provision of operation and maintenance
services in the PRC, and the principal non-
current assets employed by the Group
are located in the PRC. Accordingly, no
analysis by geographical segments has been
provided for the year.

MUV BREF R THEEE
B BRI EEEDBEESR
EEEHWm MEKERRE
S ERME - EEIF -BRE
B|HREERIBRT WESHA
FEBE-Z2HRDB-BENDH -
I » 6 5 2 51 53 BB 0 4

FEEE2HWEREPFEHNES
BEWA-BEBERA-HER
TN U R 1R 1 & ke 4 AR 75
H&)\’EE$$@E/]EE EREE
B RE - K I F AT EE
it 1 o0 BB 0 47 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- j- ?‘2 $E % M_.I- J-I

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 5 FRIRANEF
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRIGETR AT, GTA) UM TFIEE®R
(crediting): FER
(a) Net finance costs (a) BAFERRZSIFEE

2021 2020
— 5 — TE B

— — —< =

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR NS

Interest income F B WA (367) (721)
Net foreign exchange gain HNBE U 505 KB - (21,932)

Finance income R ON (22,653)
Interest on interest-bearing FEBE -ENRER

borrowings, consideration REREMF] S

payable and shareholder’s loan 44,908
Interest on lease liabilities HESEMNER 333

. Total interest expense recognised RIEmERH

in profit or loss MEMAZARER 45,241
Bank charges RITER 64
Finance expenses B Z 45,305

B
L

156 PUXING ENERGY LIMITED EZEfEEHMEAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Personnel costs

5

mE M HwRRM

PRIATE ) ()

Wages, salaries and other benefits
Contribution to defined
contribution plans

TERAM

#E s TEREMER
R 5t 8B HRR

(b) EIRZ
2021 2020
—E-—F etk
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR BNELEwH
35,013 34,144
2,471 490
37,484 34,634

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits
all the pension fund contributions to the
respective social security offices, which are
responsible for the payments and liabilities
relating to the pension funds. The Group has
no obligation for payment of retirement and
other post-retirement benefits of employees
other than the contributions described
above.

A5 B 2 2 B BUR 4B 8RR IR
T REBEHBERARERE  £&H
AEFHR - FAEERASHTRPE
B 2 8RR AR R MR
=R BR R R B R K = AE B BY T K
REE-FREMMERI FEBL
ESEERRKREMBKREET
(NENE2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 PMREnER @)
(b) BEIZ (&)

(b) Personnel costs (Continued)

158

The Group also operates a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

FEBRTREAFERRE T
1w HEEEREREANEZE
BERIEBIERAFELTE
BRNEFETE (TRREFTE) - #t
MEREEELHETHDLFL I
RIRFBRBE S S BIERAX N
BEREmNG BB ENEER
BUEBERESRE HAEEEE
DHRFE AEBENEZHRE
ABREAIRTHEBRES




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

BRIGAEF] (#)
(c) HftER

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5
(c) Other items

2021 2020
—E-—F etk
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR PNELRE

Net loss on disposal of property, HEME -BEKR
plant and equipment REEBIBFE 2,790
Depreciation charge (note 11) ER (EE11)
— Owned property, —BBEYE -BEK
plant and equipment B4} 84,692
- Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
- land use rights — TR 1,698
— Right-of-use assets —ERAEEE
— other properties —H ¥ 2,006
Amortisation i
- Intangible assets (note 12) —\mrEE (=F12) 611
Expense relating to short-term leases EfEHATHEARAMB S 107
Auditor’s remuneration Z ENEM BN =
- audit services — 2B RS 1,540
— other services —HMARTE 1,980
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HMA
2021 2020
—E- 5 gl
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR BN
Government grants (i) IS T 45 B i)
Rent concessions received B & E R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

6 OTHER INCOME (Continued) 6 HMWKA @

() Government grants represented () BN#EWEEE—_S”-—F+=
unconditional government grants of B=+—HLEFERFTAHAEERN
RMB4,679,000 (2020: RMB1,826,000) R BT A B AR 54,679,000
awarded to the Group and the amortisation T (ZEZEEF 0 AK¥1,826,000
of deferred government grants of 70) R IRSE T AL A R
RMB389,000 during the year ended 389,000 (ZEZZHF . AR
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB364,000). 364,0007T) ©

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 SGEBEEmXRABMRER

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

(a) Income tax in the consolidated (a) ZFEHETRABERFMRIE .

statement of profit or loss represents:

2021 2020
—F—F s

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR NG

Current tax BPHAFRIE
PRC Corporate Income Tax R 2FTEH 38,687
Under-provision in respect UEFEEEBERRE
of prior years 177
38,864
Deferred tax ERIERIE
Origination and reversal R EENESE
8,814

of temporary differences -&:{E

B
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

statement of profit or loss represents:
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman lIslands, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman lIslands.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax
has been made as the Group did not
have any assessable profits subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and
31 December 2020.

The provision for PRC Corporate
Income Tax is based on the respective
Corporate Income Tax rates applicable
to the subsidiaries located in the PRC
as determined in accordance with
the relevant income tax rules and
regulations of the PRC.

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of PRC, the Group’s subsidiaries in
the PRC are subject to the unified tax
rate of 25%.

The PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its relevant regulations impose a
withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced
by a tax treaty or arrangement, for
dividend distributions out of the PRC
from earnings accumulated from
1 January 2008. Undistributed earnings
generated prior to 1 January 2008 are
exempted from such withholding tax.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(i)

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 ZEEmXRANAER &
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a) ZEHETRANFRERIE:. @)

RIEBEREH SRR IER
rEBHBRBNEAFEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A
Wi 3 7

i1 F5 R Y 51

7 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 =B
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense (b)
and accounting profit at applicable tax
rate:

BmRAFRER @

BREAREHENRERZAS
sHimFIE AR

2021 2020
—F=-— e

GUUISGLOE  RMB’000
ARETR ENSEST

Profit before taxation FRHR B A A 154,191 171,352
Notional tax on profit before taxation, BRR A& A 8% EFR 18

calculated at the rates applicable to 1% 4RI E X A @A) 8 B

profits in the countries concerned MEHE 41,994
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses “~ A 170 B BIFR 7582 28 387
Tax effect of unused tax losses RIS Eﬁ%@]ﬁﬁﬁfﬁéﬂﬁ

not recognised HIRFEE 112 4083
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised T &M@ T FE E KR

temporary differences utilised OREENRBEE (2,595) (2,587)
Recognition of previously unrecognised & 53 5 Al Sk FE 52 B9

deductible temporary differences ARG Rt = 2R (844) (1,300)
Under-provision in prior years BEFEREBTRE 1,889 177
Withholding tax on profits retained R Fft & A B R B i A

by PRC subsidiaries BT 11,079

BERMERX

Actual tax expense

50,399

LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANClAL STATEMENTS
n\7|'\ j- %‘Z $E %E Mj- I:II

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to RIEE B AT ERFIEI83(N)E R AT (¥
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies BEEENGER) RAF2HIFENES
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies MEwT

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-E--FE+-RA=+-RALEE
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’  and benefits  Discretionary scheme

fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total

e RMR
ik B RETEL  BHIER #zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR ARBTR

Executive Directors nTEs

Mr. Xu Anliang (appointed on 28 April 2021)  HZREE (RZZT_—
mEZ+/\BZMA)

Mr. Wei Junyong BHEkE

Mr. Gu Genyong (resigned on 28 April 2021)  EER K EE (R ——
mAZ+AREHD)

Independent non-executive Directors BUEdTES

Mr. Tse Chi Man HEX KL
Mr. Yao Xianguo o il
Mr. Yu Wayne W. mERLE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- j‘ %‘2 $E 15—% M_.I- J-I

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME ®

Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZZZZETZA=+—HUIZFE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
e BER
EESiES bk HEBTEA  BRASEIER s

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARBTn ARETn ARETRn  ARETR

Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Wei Junyong BHEERE - - - = =
Mr. Gu Genyong BiRKEE - 516 341 28 885
Independent non-executive Directors B FHITER
Mr. Tse Chi Man #EELE 178 - - - 178
Mr. Yao Xianguo HhIEEL 178 - - - 178
Mr. Yu Wayne W. nREBEE 178 - - - 178
534 516 341 28 1419
No emoluments were paid by the Group during FRoAEBRMERESERIERMN
the year to the Directors in connection with their AAERNREMAESZAME 7R
retirement from employment with the Group, or ZRAEERMHEBELERBEZS " —
inducement to join. The directors’ emolument for F+ZA=+—BLFENMETL 25
Mr. Xu Anliang and Mr. Wei Junyong for the year HYEERERERAE (FEEM)
ended 31 December 2021 was borne respectively (HERRLE (B4 EHHNA
by China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (“China B BREARRENREERS) K&
Wanxiang”), wh|ch is a company controlled by MEBRAE(ERER) N—KKEBEQ

TEG)& EREERERASEBRESH

LI

164 PUXING ENERGY LIMITED EZEfEEHMEAR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7r\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST 9 EE#HAL
EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest AEBREERSHFALTH —% (T2
emoluments, one (2020: one) is the director T —%) RAES HMERENHE
whose emolument is disclosed in note 8. The SoHMM%Z (ZZEZZF M%) ALK
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the P48 ZEE0T -

other four (2020: four) individuals are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—F |kl

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNELE R

Wages, salaries and other benefits e IEREMER] 1,255 1,452
Discretionary bonuses FETEAT 582 537
Contributions to defined contribution plan & ZB{fE st 2= 110 71

1,947 2,060
The emoluments of the four (2020: four) O (CEZESF MR R ALTH
individuals with the highest emoluments are within A= LA T4ER -

the following bands:

2021 2020
—EZ—F Pebdmbid
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A¥ AE
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,00078 7T 4
No emoluments were paid by the Group during FRC-AEEMBERALRS T ESEE
the year to the five highest paid employees in B ERANBEAERNRBMEESZ T
connection with their retirement from employment i

with the Group, or inducement to join.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘7|'

CLECE eSS

10 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB103,825,000 (2020: RMB124,190,000)
and the weighted average of 458,600,000
(2020: 458,600,000) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share was the same as
basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020
as there were no dilutive potential shares
during both years.

LI
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10 BRE

(a)

(b)

)

SREFXER
EREXABINRERNEAQATE
ERETZDREFELZNARE
103,825,00070 (ZE_FF | AR
#5124,190,00070) & BT EER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANClAL STATEMENTS
n\7|'\ j- %‘Z $E %E Mj- I:II

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERZE
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount (a) EREEZHER
Motor
vehicles, Right-
furniture, of-use
Buildings Major fixtures, Assets
and generator Other  equipment carried at  Assets under
plants  equipment  machineries gg ogérs cost  construction Total
1598 SERER  HAANEN

BYRER 2 MRS Bt fRERE  ERERE &3t
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOO0  RMBO0O
ARETn  ARETR  ARETn  ARBTn  ARETn  ARBTn  ARETR

Cost: A
At 1 January 2020 RZE-TE-F-H 374,345 1,879,005 332,029 18,043 64,125 12,246 2,679,793
Additions hE - - 1,051 325 7,648 9,141 18,665
Transfer from assets under BERTREE

construction 230 16,140 852 = = (17,222) =
Disposals KE 821) (1.831) 1986) (1.270) - (1,669) 6,076)

At 31 December 2020 and s ﬂ

1 January 2021 &_SZ 374,254 1,893,314 333,446 | 7718 2,497 2,692,382
Addttions - - 759 482 12,374 13,861
Transfer from assets @?’%‘é BhEREE

under construction 3,782 7,836 1,511 - (13,129)

Disposals RE - (339) (827) (7,648) = 413

At 31 December 2021 T = 378,036 1,900,812 334,889 ] 64,607 ] 2,697,430

Accumulated depreciation and EHiERH{ERFSE

impairment losses:

At 1 January 2020 RIE-ZE—F-H (109,649) (602,896) (178,359) (17,510) (4,351) - (912,765)
Charge for the year ERER (10,477) (67,658) (15,798) (759) (8,704) - (88,39)
Written back on disposals RERD 108 537 853 1,207 - - 2,705

At 31 December 2020 and E@:?:?EEZH =i
—_ H_

1 January 2021 R-B--F-F-H (120018) (660,017  (193:304) (17,062) (8,085) (998,456)
Charge for the year ENER (10,787) (57,819) (15,493) (25) (3,291) (87,415)
Written back on disposals R E & - 10 705 - 2,589 3,364
At 31 December 2021 e AREER Rl (130,805)  (117,766)  (208,092) (17,087) (8,757) (1,082,507)
Net book value: RESE:
At 31 December 2021 RIZZ-E+ZH=1-H IR 1,183,046 126,797 | ; 1,614,923
At 31 December 2020 WoB-EF+-A=+-H 254236 1283207 140,142 % 83,718 2497 1,693,926
As at 31 December 2021, no property, plant P E D e I e
and equipment were pledged as collateral for mYE - BERRECIRFERIBT
bank loans (31 December 2020: Nil). EXRNERR (CZ _$¢+

=T

£
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERSZE #E
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (b) FEREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right- FTREEENRE FEREMRAE
of-use assets by class of underlying asset is EFE MU
as follows:

2021 2020
—EC—F e

Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AR¥Tx PNEL:-E

Leasehold land held for own use, F{EEABEE i

carried at depreciated cost BITE R AR (i) 57,198
Other properties leased for own A& 1EE BRI E M
use, carried at depreciated cost #) % > IR EE Rl A
5| BR (if) 6,520
63,718
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME-BERSZE #E
(Continued)
(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) EREEE &)
The analysis of expense items in relation RERFPEINEEERMBASZIE
to leases recognised in profit or loss is as BT
follows:

2021 2020
—EZ—F il
Note RMB’000 RMB’000

By 5E N LS ARET T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use 32 8R8 & E 855/~
assets by class of underlying asset: fEREEENERSL .

Leasehold land held for own use FEERMNMEELH () 1,698
Other properties leased for own use T E1EE R
Htn#z (il 2,006
3,704
Interest on lease liabilities (note 5(a)) TEE&EF S (FizE5(a)) 333
Expense relating to short-term leases £ 55 HATA E B RIAIR X 107
COVID-19-related rent EWERI2019B AR F S
concessions received REEREER (281)
During the year, additions to right-of- RERN AEFRESES AR
use assets were RMB482,000 (2020: 482,000t (ZZ2EZZF . AR
RMB7,648,000). This amount primarily 7,648,0007T) & REF E A
related to the capitalised lease payments EmZEETHNEXRLENCHEEN
payable under new tenancy agreements. MER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 11 ME BEKRSKE #&)
(Continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets (Continued) (b) ERHEEE @

170

Details of total cash outflow for leases and
the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in notes 17(c) and 22, respectively.

As disclosed in note 2(e), the Group has
early adopted the Amendment to IFRS 16,
Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond
30 June 2021, and there is no impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) Leasehold land held for own use

The Group holds several leasehold
lands, which lump sum payments were
paid to PRC government authorities,
with a lease period of 30 to 50 years
when granted. It carried at depreciated
cost and depreciation is charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the respective periods of the land
use rights.

(ij) Other properties leased for own
use

The Group has obtained the right to use
- other properties as its office buildings

l hrouah te
Al =l (
L . T s i e

HENHERHBRREESRE
BY 2 H3 0 A Z 5% 15 9 B 85 10 B
517(c) k220

UM EE2(e)FTINE  KEE B IR
PRMERM B RS ERH 1658
Bk _E-_—FNA=Z+HZ
BRI2019BH T EHIEFHHEEE
B BHAERHEHE_ZT - —
+-_B=+—HLEFENGEM
BHmRWEREo

() #HFEERABHEELH

7 £ B 55 A BUIE 1) P B BT
WAABAN —REMRNAE
T FHEHEBA30E50
FoRFT I MBTEMATIER
RifEZ Tt AENGER
FHNEREEREBD RN
Ba o

(i) HEMFEFAHEMYE

FEBEZEBEEHZREE
BHEMYMEFAMIABT R
ETE&EEN 2FHES

DS BEIFE TGN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
m7|'\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BLEE
Pollutant
emission
right Software Total
B B it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT AREFTT ARBTFR
Cost: 5%
At 1 January 2020 R_E_TF—F—H 3,152 42 3,194
Additions wNE = - -
At 31 December 2020 KRB BFE
+ZA=+—H
Additions wNE
At 31 December 2021 RW_E_—&F
S A=
Accumulated amortisation: EEHiEes .
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZEF—HF—H (1,861) (11) (1,872)
Charge for the year FREH (607) (4) 611)
At 31 December 2020 e =
=a—18 (2,468) (2,483)
Charge for the year FRNEH (678) (682)
At 31 December 2021 =S — — - =
== (3,146) (3,165)
Net book value: BRMEFE .
At 31 December 2021 KRB = =
=i il
At 31 December 2020 AT T T[Sl
=5—B 684 27 alsl
The amortisation charge of RMB682,000 FR#HERS ARKE682,000T (Z& =
(2020: RMB611,000) for the year is included TH: AR¥611,0007T) Bt AR &18
in “depreciation and amortisation” in the R WAV THT B8 Re i B R o

consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

13 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET 13 HthIERHEE

2021 2020
— =B —F el

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T BNES:Ew

Prepayment of maintenance service fee B RERBEE 8,424 =
Other non-current asset represents the prepaid HMERBEERKRBILE - A HER
maintenance service fee for the daily repair and RENHEHEERGERBNENRE
maintenance service provided by an independent RFEE o

third party supplier.

14 INVENTORIES 14 #F§8

2021 2020
b bt T

RMB’000 [ESIVI=R0lelo
ARETR BNShawr

Spare parts B 57,645 57,664
Materials and supplies Yyl K (i FE 955 1,029
Low value consumables REEHER 251 267

58,851

gt

172



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RBARNKRE
The following list contains only the particulars of TREFEFEXTELERXE - BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, FEENNBARNEIE R BEH
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of SN FRIFERD R AT B

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Percentage of
Place and date of eq“':g:gm:‘::;e to Issued and
establishment/ = 5 fully paid-up/ Principal
incorporation FAARGREE L registered capital country
Name of company L/ SRS Direct Indirect BETRMR/ of operation  Principal activity
G kB Ef Rt &S TEREER IEER
Puxing Tian (HK) Limited (‘Puxing Tian") Hong Kong 100% - HK$193,663,941/ Hong Kong, China Investment holding
26 June 2008 Not applicable
EEX (B 5RAT (EEX)) &4 100% 193,663, 941% 7/ hEEE RELR
ZER\ERAZTAH TR
Puxing Xing (HK) Limited (‘Puxing Xing’) Hong Kong 100% = HK$98,844,399/ Hong Kong, China Investment holding
26 June 2008 Not applicable
E28 (BF) BRAR ((EER) &k 100% - 08,844,309%7/ HEEE KErk
ZEE\ERBIHA TER
Puxing Neng (HK) Limited (‘Puxing Neng’) Hong Kong 100% - HK$75,624,511/ Hong Kong, China Investment holding
: 26 June 2008 Not applicable 4
L2k (B3 5RAT (EEK)) &4 100% - T58o4511ET/ e REZk
ZER\ERAZAH NEl
Puxing An (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% - HK$1/ Not applicable Hong Kong, China Investment holding
(formerly known as Puxing Ji (HK) Limited) 2 September 2008
E2% (BH) BRAR &k 100% - 181/ HEEE RErk
(REEES (BF BRAE) “2Z)\FNAZH FER
Zhejiang Puxing Bluesky Natural Gas Power The PRC = 100% US$17,171,400/ The PRC Power generation =
Co,, Ltd. () 15 December 2004 US$17,171,400
HIEEEXARESERAT) e - 100%  17,171400%7/ e 4%
“2IME+ZATEA 17,171 400 70
Zhejiang Puxing Jingxing Natural Gas Power The PRC = 100% US$16,660,000/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. () 6 January 2005 US$16,660,000
MIEERBAREEARAH) e - 100%  16,660,000%7/ HE #3
“225%-A5H 16,660,000% 75
Zhejiang Puxing Deneng Natural Gas Power The PRC - 100% US$18,408,710/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. i) 18 August 2004 US§18,408,710
FIEEEEAEERARAT i - 100%  18,408,710%7/ e %3
“ZEmENAH/\A 18,408,710%7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

15 INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 RIBATIMNIKRE &)

174

(Continued)
Percentage of
Place and date of eq“':geag;'::‘;ﬂe to Issued and
establishment/ p fully paid-up/ Principal
incorporation FAARMRER A registered capital country
Name of company A/ R e Direct Indrect ~ EFTRAR/ of operation  Principal activity
PRk RAH B# i ES IREEAX IERH
Puxing (Anji) Gas Turbing Thermal Power The PRC - 100% US$46,011,933/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. () 25 February 2011 US$46,011,933 and heat supply
B (ﬁéﬁ) IMEAEERAR() e = 100%  46,011933%7/ HE BN ftH
ZE——%£"B°1+4H 46,011938% 7
Wenling Juneng Wind Power Generation Co., The PRC = 78%" RMB4,000,000/ The PRC Power generation
Ltd. ("Wenling Power Plant’) (i) 3 July 2014 RMB50,000,000 (under design and
planning stage)
BERERNEEARLT i - 78%" ARH4,000,0007/ | g
( REER) (i) “E-MmELA=A AR 50,000,00070 (st RAEIES)
Quzhou Puxing Gas Turbine Thermal Power The PRC = 100%  RMB300,000,000/ The PRC Power generation
Co., Ltd. (v) 30 November 2011 RVB300,000,000 and heat supply
EMEEMEABERAT( e - 100% A #300,000,0007/ e EBRiH
“2——F+-fA=1H AR 300,000,007

I Wholly foreign-owned enterprise established

under the PRC law with limited liability

i:  Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
established under the PRC law with limited

liability

ii:  Limited liability company established under

the PRC law

LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e B AR MY 5

16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BWE Z KHEHMIRIE

2021 2020
—8_-— TEITEF

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT EELRRT

Trade receivables FEUL B 5 I8
Bills receivable FEUL 4%
Prepayments FEfIFRIE
Other receivables HuhEWsIa

90,859 43,545
- 1,790
1,220 998
1,676 2,286
93,755 48,619

All of the trade and other receivables are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within
one year.

At 31 December 2021, ageing analysis of trade
receivables of the Group based on the invoice
date is as follows:

FRERKWE Z RHEMMBRBAAN —F
MU el e iR AR

REEET esaee 5 Sl 5] 0 aseolE
EW B 5 F a1 8 = H EAFT(E R BR B4
R

2021 2020
it bt W ==

IR RMB'000
ARBTR WNELEwT

Within 1 month — @B K

90,397

After 1 month but within 6 months Be—EAENRERN 462

90,859 43,545
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEFEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION mE R
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) RERREEEBMEIE !

2021 2020

—_$ X
— T — _7_7

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr NG

Cash and cash equivalents in N =N B LN
the consolidated statement of FEReERERNRER
financial position and consolidated IR&%HEY)

statement of cash flows 131,964
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEEFBEESFEHIKR

from financing activities

The table below details changes in the TREIMEEZHFIEELAER
Group’s liabilities from financing activities, BEZEFFS BERENIFR
including both cash and non-cash changes. TEY MEITBELEZABREE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are HEEREELKHAKRKRERE
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future BRAEEGRERERERDE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group'’s AHMBEHELAZEREERENE
consolidated statement of cash flows as Je

cash flows from financing activities.

B
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION MER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEFEBELEB/HIR @)

from financing activities (Continueq)

Interesting-
bearing Consideration Shareholder’s Lease
borrowings payable loan liabilities Total

itEEE ERKE EE Eaf it

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR AEETR AERETR AEETR

(I CRE)] (note 20) (note 18) (note 22)

(ft19) (Ffk20) (L) (k2)

At 1 January 2021 AZE_—-%-B-H 775,190 309,462 91,404 5,788 1,181,844

Changes from financing HEREHEZEE

cash flows:
Capital element of lease BfHERE

rentals paid RN - (2,011) (2,011)
Proceeds from new loans BT ZFr{EEIE 524,000 - 524,000
Repayment of loans BEER (581,500) - (581,500)

Payment for acquisition U E T
of Quzhou Power Plant BMEBRAR
under common control (110,000) (110,000)

Total changes from financing MEREREZ £HEE

cash flows (57,500) (110,000) (PXR) (169,511)
Other adjustments: Hith:RE .
Exchange adjustments ERAE (2,677) (2,677)
Increase in lease liabilities — FARFTLHEEL M

from entering into new HE&E

leases during the year 461 461
Disposal of right-of-use HEFRREEREE

assets and lease liabilities ~ &1& (3,912) (3,912)
Net (decrease)/increase in ~ FEEHF| BRI H

accrued interest expense % (Ai)) /181 ! ‘ - 12,742

At 31 December 2021 R-E--&
=Rz

=} 717,438 208,045 ; 326 1,018,947
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 17 RERREEFEYUREMIRE
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION MER @)
(Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (b) MEIFBELEEGEHK @)

from financing activities (Continued)

Interesting-
bearing  Consideration  Shareholder's Lease
borrowings payable loan liabilities Total
StEEE EAAE REE HERE 5t

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEBFT  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTRn  ARBTR

(note 19) (note 20) (note 18) (note 22)

(F13t19) (Ff#5+20) (FiizE18) (Fit5k22)

At 1 January 2020 R-E_E&
—B—H 703,181 = 135,075 829 839,085

Changes from financing REREHEZEE:

cash flows:
Capital element of lease BRAEEREH

rentals paid BERMH - - = (2,437) (2,437)
Proceeds from new loans T EXZFr{E7UE 410,000 - - - 410,000
Repayment of loans BERER (330,213) - (24,337) - (354,550)
Payment for acquisition TR L [E 2] T

of Quzhou Power Plant BINERITE

under common control - (50,000 - — (50,000)

Total changes from financing REELHEZ

cash flows 2R 79,787 (50,000 (24,337) (2,437) 3,013

(16,833)

7,396
P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION
(Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases
Amounts included in the consolidated

4 A
17177 N e |

RA 75 ¥ A< MY 5E

17 RERREFEVMUREMTEE

MER @)

(c) HEZRERNEE
MEESFAGERERERNE

statement of cash flows for leases comprise WU .
the following:
2021 2020
—EZ—F gl
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEE: R
Within operating cash flows FAREREME 246 333
Within financing cash flows FFARMEBERERE 2,011 2,437
2,257 2,770
These amounts relate to the following: ZETEHEMUTEERE !
2021 2020
ZE—F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEE:RwT

SENRE-Titk

Lease rentals paid

2,257
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

im e RS i R MY R

18 SHAREHOLDER’S LOAN

18 RERE

:l:

i
gL

2021 2020

ol Sl — o — =i
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T PN R

Principal amount KEE
Accrued interest expense FEETFI SR

88,674 91,281
4,464 123

93,138 91,404

Reconciliation to the consolidated & MFEIRRRZHIE :

statement of financial position:

Current liabilities mEas
Non-current liabilities ERHEB

91,404

91,404

As at 31 December 2021, the outstanding
principal amount of shareholder’s loan due
to Puxing International Limited (“Puxing
International”), the immediate controlling
company of the Company, was HK$108,457,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB88,674,000)
(81 December 2020: HK$108,457,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB91,281,000)), bearing
|.terest at 4.9% per annum. The outstandmg

LI

PUXING ENERGY LIMITED EZEfEEHMEAR

P =T B =E—F &
KRG ERIERATZERHKBERAE
(TEEEE) NAREERREERLE
%87108,457,0007% 7C (*ﬁ# ROARE
#%88,674,0007t) (ZE-FF+_-4
=-+—H : 108,457,000 T (FBERH
AR #91,281,0007t)) * HEFZEL.9%
R BT AREENASERBRFE
BR_BE__F+_"_BA=+HMEE-




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
n\7r\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 stEEE

At 31 At 31
December December
2021 2020

® i
—E—F il
+=A +—R
=+—-0 [EREE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEE:RWH

Unsecured loans from related parties (i) £ 5 5 B 38 75 & 2 (i) 531,421 444 445
Unsecured bank loans guaranteed by Fi B S ERHN

related parties (ii) LR IR1T E 7)) 115,924 330,745
Unsecured bank loans EIRFIRITER 70,093 -

717,438 775,190

Reconciliation to the consolidated 4 &K RNRZHIR :
statement of financial position:

Current liabilities mEmeE 286,438 274,440
Non-current liabilities EREERE 431,000 500,750
717,438 775,190
()  Unsecured loans from related parties as at () R B — %1+ = H= Bl
31 December 2021 represented loans and EIEHEAE S ERIERBEEQH :
accrued interest expense from Wanxiang HKHNERLESFBSET AR |
Finance of RMB461,421,000 (31 December 461,421,0007c (ZE-_ZEF+_H&
2020: RMB364,445,000) and loans from =+—H : AR¥364,445,0005T)
Shanghai Puxing of RMB70,000,000 MERBLEBEENERARE
(31 December 2020: RMB80,000,000), 70,000,000t (ZEZZEF+H
which borne interest at 4.4805% — 4.8925% =+—H : AEK¥80,000,0007T) *
per annum (31 December 2020: 4.35% — HTL R FF]FRA4.4805%F 4.8925%
4.8925% per annum). (ZE _Zq4 rh e L

FZ4.35%%4.8925%) 5t B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n\7|'

CLECE eSS

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)

(il

The bank loans and accrued interest
expenses guaranteed by related parties as
at 31 December 2021 of RMB13,520,000
(31 December 2020: RMB54,081,000) and
RMB102,404,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB276,664,400) were guaranteed by China
Wanxiang and Wanxiang Group respectively.
The bank loans borne an interest rate of
4.9% per annum (2020: 4.9% per annum)
and are repayable semi-annually till
28 February 2022 and 28 November 2022
respectively.

The bank loans are subject to the fulfilment
of financial covenants relating to certain
financial ratios of Anji Power Plant
and Quzhou Power Plant respectively,
which are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. As at
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020,
none of these covenants were breached.

LI
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19 5tEfE

(ih

8@

A _E_—F+_RB=+—HH
HEAESERNBTERKRE
5t &) %F‘;ﬂi)\& #13,520,0007T
(ZE2EZEF+"B=+—8":
AE’#}M 081,0007c) K AR #&
102,404,00070 (ZE-_ZEF+_4
=+—H : AR ¥276,664,4007T)
DAIHTEEEREREBRERC
ZERTERBRENEL49% (CF
TTE I EFNFKLI%) B ME
B¥FEHE—XEE_ZE__
BT+ N\BRZEZ_H+—
BZ+ N NHAILE-

ZERITEM /E%Eﬁiﬁ?ﬂ]iﬁiﬁ
iEEF“EszIN‘I maE T B LR
ﬁ%ﬁﬂ’]ﬁﬁ“ﬁ,ﬂﬁﬁfﬂy% > O
FRNESHEBIINEER
KRB —F+"HB=1+—~8
RZF_ZBF+"H=+—H'%&
ERNEEIER




20 CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE M HwRRM

EAARE

2021 2020
—E-—F et
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT PNEL:RwE

Current BN &R
Non-current JERDHA

106,226 101,181
101,819 208,281

208,045 309,462

According to the Share Purchase Agreement,
the Final Consideration should be paid in four
installments in the manner set out in the Share
Purchase Agreement and the outstanding Final
Consideration bears a fixed interest rate of 5% per
annum.

The first payment of RMB50,000,000 and the
second payment of RMB110,000,000 were
fully repaid in October 2020 and September
2021 respectively, and the remaining parts of
RMB100,000,000 and RMB95,851,000 with
related interest expense will be repayable on
8 October 2022 and 8 October 2023 respectively.

REREEEGZ RRAERZKE
BEBZFTHN SN IR RARX
THRKABREEFHEE%TE

BEMRAR50,000,000ckE_E
3k AR 110,000,000t 2D B =
FE RSt SURRNE S e o g =
2 M &k AR %100,000,0007T & AR
#95,851,000 0 EEEREF ERZ B D
AR -_E__F+BANBER-E_=
+BN\HEEZE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- j- ?‘2 $E 13—% M_.I- J-I

21 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21 ERNBS KREMKRIE

2021 2020
— = —F Eaii:d

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETr PNELEwT

Trade payables FE(T B 5 I8 5,453 3,078
Other payables and accrued expenses Efth & {5k 18 & fE =t B s 44,419 50,743

49,872 53,821
As at 31 December 2021, the ageing analysis of N TE T —F+_A=+—H KEE
trade payables of the Group based on the invoice BB S RIBZEZHAMENRE D
date, is as follows: wanr

2021 2020
b bt T

RMB’000 [ESIVI=R0lelo
ARETR BNShawr

Within 3 months =EBEX 5,453 2,969
Over 3 months but less than 6 months B@=1EFB/xE2 R 98
Over 6 months but less than 1 year BB /NESEB—FER 11

B
L
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

22 LEASE LIABILITIES 22 HE&aRE
At 31 December 2021, the lease liabilities were A _E_—F+_H=+—H EEM
repayable as follows: Ea@dumT:

2021 2020
—E-—F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRx BNEL:Swr

Within 1 year —FR 247 2,000
After 1 year but within 2 years —FBEMFEAN 79 1,569
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBEAFRN - 2,219

79 3,788

5,788

23 DEFERRED REVENUE 23 IRIEU =R
2021 2020
—E—F Emtoalls

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR NGRS

Government grants IS #R6 Be 11,494 e /1
The government grants are recognised as income BUAS 8 B 7S EL 78 B Py i &5 = DY AL B Al A
over the periods necessarily to match them with (BIRERAEREENRA) 8 TE
the related costs of assets constructed which they RUEA RS A REER A U A - B R &8 b 1 7 £
are intended to compensate over the periods and ZEBEMFSINENLEA— -

in the proportion in which depreciation on those
assets is charged.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 IREUMBRARANAFR
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(a) Current taxation in the consolidated (a) SFREMRFHIKRRABPEAIRIALS ¢
statement of financial position
represents:

2021 2020
—E-—F et

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETrx PNEL:EwT

Balance at 1 January RN—B—B04EER 22,339 13,041
Provision for PRC Corporate FRPBETCEMEREE

Income Tax for the year 40,113 38,864
Transferred from deferred tax DI E RS BIRIER IS

upon distribution of dividends - 29,810
Corporate Income Tax paid BN EEMEF (33,070) (59,376)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—HH%&H 29,382 22,339

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) BHEZNEERESERAE:

recognised:
Reconciliation to the consolidated REMBRARZER

statement of financial position

2021 2020
—E-—F et

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ke MBI MIEE

24

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

(c) Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities

The component of deferred tax assets/
(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

B BIRRRANFRER @)

(c) BEEMEEERAGBIHEMED

By Y
ERRBEHERRRRERNE
ERBEE, (B8R REZFHNM
T

Withholding
tax on
profits
Property, retained
Property, plant and by the
plantand  equipment- Group’s Unpaid
equipment- other Government PRC accrued
Deferred tax arising from depreciation  adjustments grants  subsidiaries expenses Total
i3
nE-BER ME BER FEMBAR
B ] #fE REEND xxf
EERUTRENEIRE -fE  -EMBE HRER BiR REsER “i
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AEBTE ARETn ARETn AR%Tn  ARETn ARETR
At 1 January 2020 RZEZ2F-F-H (6,821) 2,509 2,935 (83,209) - (34,586)
Recognised in consolidated statement R SBERRED
of profit or loss (1,350) 1,282 (92) (8,604) - (8,814)
Transferred from deferred tax liabilities upon 2 kR EFEEEERE
distribution of dividends & = = = 29,810 - 29,810
At 31 December 2020 and R-B-BET_A=+-H
1 January 2021 RZE-_-%£-B-H (8,171) 3,741 2,843 (12,003) = (13,590)
Recognised in consolidated statement R ARERRED
of profit or loss (2,486) 199 3 (11,079) 3,049 (10,286)
At 31 December 2021 RZFZ-%+ZA=t+-H (10,657) 3,940 2,874 (23,082 3,049 (23,876)

As at 31 December 2021, deferred tax
liabilities of RMB23,082,000 (2020:
RMB12,003,000) have been recognised in
connection with the withholding tax that
would be payable on the distribution of
the retained profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries.

REE TS T B =5 5
MEAEEFENBLASRE ;ﬁﬁu
B9 53 Tk T FE S B9 TR 40 R R R AR

RIEaE AR23,082,0007T (_
T -ZFE . ARK12,003,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
n‘7|- j- ?‘2 $E 13—% M_.I- J-I

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 BREMBRRARABNMEFR @)

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) KREZHELZERIEEE
Deferred tax assets have not been BARMUATEERDRELERIEE
recognised in respect of the following items, B RERATKABERRKEZRR
because it is not probable that future taxable A AR AEENFBBEN o

profit will be available against which the
Group can use the benefits therefrom.

31 December 2021 31 December 2020
—E_-F¥+-A=+—-H “Z_ZF+_A=+—H
Gross Tax Gross Tax
amount effect amount effect
B nEEE ot nHETE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AE%TR ARETH NG SN e

Deductible temporary differences iR ERER 70,876 17,719 82,838 20,710
Tax losses RIEEE 4,039 827 4,202 913

74,915 18,546 87,040 21,623

LI
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
m7|'\ j- %‘Z $E % Mj- I:II

24 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 24 REUMBRARANARIFIR (&

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Continued)

(d) Deferred tax assets not recognised (d) KERIRERIESE 2
(Continued)
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations BIEPEAMESANERERA
in the mainland China and Hong Kong, the KIEAF > RERS RN KERMR
unrecognised tax losses at the end of the BEBERIUTEMRE
reporting period will expire in the following
years:

2021 2020
SEF ot

GUUSGOE  RMB'000
ARETR BNSCEr

2021 B —F 786
2022 b=t 168
2023 o= ’7‘ e —
2024 —EF O 8
2025 :g_ﬁﬁ 1,612
2026 e S =
Unexpired* R HER 1,628
4,202
2 The tax losses under Hong Kong tax jurisdiction can * EEMBEEAHEBE THNRZEEETR
be utilised against the future taxable profits derived LURHH B SR N BB EENRKRER
from Hong Kong by the relevant entity, and do not MiaF > RIBRITRBIEB S @A o

expire under current tax legislation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
i e MBI AR M EE

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 25 BAR-#EKRKE
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) H#ERmEBPRZEE
The reconciliation between the opening and KEBRGERZ ST FEVHF
closing balances of each component of the REGRZHRENGEERED
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the KA RNBERI MmN FH)EF
consolidated statement of changes in equity. R EBFFEBWT

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
The Company ¥ 37|
Share Share  Contributed Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
Rx  ROEE BARE  ErBE  EREE RHEER L4
Note RMB'000O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
Mz AR¥Trn ARBTr ARETn AR%Tr ARETn ARET: ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZE-ZE-RA—-BNER 40,149 65,640 358,044 26,065 (2,629)  (207,365) 279,904
Changes in equity for 2020: ZECTERGES.
Profit for the year ERiEF - - - - - 185,264 185,264
Other comprehensive income H2EHA - - - - (3,330) - (3,336)
Total comprehensive income FRZAKALE
for the year = . = = (3336) 185264 181,928
Dividends approved in respect of B ENAERE
previous year 25(d)(ii) - (16,537) - - - - (16,537)
Balance at 31 December 2020 H=E-F£+ZA=+—HK
®i 40,149 49,103 358,044 26,065 (5,965) (22,101) 445,295

Share Share Contributed Capital Translation Accumulated Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve losses equity
Bd  RIVEE HARSG ESHE EREE  RHEH g
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AE%TRE ARETR A